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COMPANY PROFILE

JH Hedding, Allerpd, ApS' main subsidiary, Welltec®,
iz a global service provider which develops and
delivers technology and services intended to
transform the oll and gas industry. Other business
ackivities mainly comprise breeding of horses
including cwnership of horses,

WelltecE:'s gamea-changing solutions are dedicated
Lo optimizing the constroection and managemant of
aur clients’ well siock, from well compéeticn desian
and construction 1o the intervention servioes
required to ensure performance and Integrity,

We pddress the Tachors thal maximize valee cres-
tion, continuously innovating to reduce well con-
struction Birme, speed up sccess 1o the hwdrocarbons
and reduce the capital expenditure compared ta
mone conventionsl methods. This results In maxim-
ized hydrocarbon production @and increased total
recovery while minimizing operating downtime,

It's Welltec's philosophy to challenge exssting con-
ventions and think laterally in order {o develop

products and services that increase ol and gas re-
covery whike improving the sustainable, sconomic,
environmental and safety aspects of our industry,

In practice, we develop, Tedt and manufacture stake-
of-the-art technofogy bo enhance the production and
recovery retes for our clients, Lhereby improving
their profitability through a fonger term revenue
streamn, while at the same time improving upon
haalth, safety and environmental attributes.

T an industry challepgead by low ail prices, our Flex-
WellE® des:gn pravides new perspective to drilling

and completing wells, adopting & holistic spproach
that adds value continugusly over the life cycle of
the well. From reducing geclogical uncertainty, ac-
ceterating first production, minimizing CAPEX, reduc-
ing costs and simplifying P&S, our approach can
boost cash flaw naw and over the life of the well,

Cur value proposition s compelling; cur technology
enables clients to unleck more produttion fram theai
assets and to address reservoir complexities and
uncertalnties with & greater number of options that
are cleaner, safer and more sustainable
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MANAGEMENT'S REVIEW
CONSOLIDATED KEY FIGURES AND RATIOS

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

{USD millions)

Revenue w oo 170 190 250 350 324
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation

and amortization (EBITDA)* 43 71 54 156 132
Operating profit (EBIT) before special items {28) (50) 22 75 &9
Operating profit (EBIT) (69) (52) 13 75 64
_Net financials (43) (29) (32) (21} (25}
Profit before tax (112} [B1) (19} 54 0
Net profit for the year {106) (70} (34) 22 19
CASH FLOWS {USD millions)

Cash flows from operating activities 23 o8 74 107 132
_Cash flows from investment activities (6) {17) {44} {42} {(88)
Cash flows from financing activities 37 {47} (11} [E] {45}
Total cash Rows {20} (6] 19 2 {2}

BALAMCE (LSD milligns)

Trade receivables a3 45 63 B5_ 84
Equity 166 201 286 312 311
‘Total assets GE5 610 725 776 793
Investments in intangible assets** 13 11 19 38 34
Investments in tangible assets®* i4 20 26 47 53
KEY RATIOS (%)
EBITDA-margin® 5%  37.3%  374%  45.2%  40.9%
EBIT-margin before special itemns -15% -2, 1% B.2%  21.5%  21.3%
ROIC excl, goodwill 3,5% 10,1% 16,2%  -31.5% 23.2%
REeturn on equity -5B% -29.8% -11,7% 7.0%: B.2%

Mumber of employees, average 732 734 Ba7 1,018 1,058




MANAGEMEN TS BEVIEW JIH HOLDING, ALLERDD, APS ANNUAL REFORT 2017 4
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* ERITOA & defined by IH Holdnpg, Alendd, ApS e reporied
cperating  proft  (EBIT] before special llems,  amarteten,
chaprEciaten, EMparmeeT logses and mwed warranls (non-cask],
Deprociation for (ess purposes. nouies oepreckation rititabe
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|m conaid=red parl of the cosis thal are dirsctly atbributafile to the
mardfactunng of procucts. JH Holdeng, Allemd, ApS* defmiton of
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reported ©o aliow for o mede sccurate essessment of the business
operations. JH Halding, Adersd, ApD' delinifon of LRITOA should
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to tha reported results prepaned in accoranca with Irternationak
Finsncial Reporting Slandords (IFRSL
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additan of feed boselc inclydamg Sdotichs frizm finantial |y
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

{UED millioms)

2017 2016

Revenue 1740 180
Cost of service provided (131} (129
Gross profit 39 &1
Walue adjustments of biological assets 14} 3
Developmant and manufacturing costs {3} {3}
Administrative amd sales costs T {54
Amortization of scquined intangibles in a business combinaton i1} (56}
Operating profit (EBIT) before special items (26} {50
Special bems (43) (2)
Operating profit (EBIT) (69) 154)
Met financial expenses [43) 1240
Income taxes 6 11
Profit for the year (106] (70

Financial Reviaw
Ravenue

Reverues amounied to USD 170 millkon, &
decrease of 11% year on year,

The development reflects the challenging market
conditions across regicns with declining
rEvinues acroas select geomarkels partly offset
by positive movements in others.

Cosd o Service Prowvided

The cost of services provided was USD 131
millign, a shghtly increase of 1% compared (o
last year.

Development amd manufactinng costs

Development and manutacturing costs not
capitalized has increased slightly to USD 3
millicn, An increase of 2% compared to 2016,

Adrmnistrative Expenses angd Sales Costs

Administrative expenses and sales casts were
LS 57 million, an Increase of 49% compared 1o
last vear, The increass is primarily due to a new
wiarrant pragramime whers S0 7 million s
expenzed in 2017,

Earnings Before Inteérest, Tax, Depreciation,
Amartization and Specisl ems (EBITDA)

EBITDA decreased b US43 million,
representing a margin of 39% unchanged from
2016, The decline in EBITDA was mainly
attributable to the fall through of lewer revénues
partly offset by the implementation of
contimuously cost efficlencles implamented
dunng the year.
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(USD miliians)

Oparating profit (EBIT) before special items
Depreciglions-and amorizelien &g pensed
Depreciations and amortization capitalized
impairment losses

lssued warrants

EBITA

Amortizabion of acquired infanaibles-in a
business combination

The significant decrease n amortization of
acgulred intangiles in b busingss combination is
due to the Q1 2016 decided wita-down of
Technology and Customer relationship with USD
53 millkion due to uncertain market conditions.

Operating Profit before Special frenms (EBIT)

EBIT increased to USD [26) million from (500
milllion kn 2016. The EBIT margin was {15}%
againet (£6)1% in 2016, The increased EBIT is
refated to the write-down of intangible assets in
20164,

Special ftems

Special tems were USD 43 million compared
with USD 2 millign in 2016, The increase n
special items s related to the compensation paid
o PFA for selling certain fights related to the
shares. Further the special tems relate to the
implementation of cost afficlencies and
adjustments to the global organization rvolving
headcount reductions and closurs of Dases

Net financlal expenses

Met financial expenses were USD 43 million, an
intrease of 47% compared ko last year, This
reflects an increase in realized currency losses
ar Bankdebt, debd to suppliers and cosks related
to the refinancing.

fhcome taxes

Incame taves were USD & millan comparsd to
USD (51} millicn in 2016, The tak pasition is
significantly affected by Interest limitation rules
in Denmark and nen-refundable withholding
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2017 2016

(26) (50)
50 60

1 1

10 59

7 1

43 71

taxes giobally. Further, the tax position is
affected negatively by the tax effect of the
refinancing of the bond debt,

Loss for the year

2017 resulted in a loss of USD 106 million,
representing a decrease in the regult of USD 36
imillian compared to 2016,

Significant events in 2017
High yield bond offering

On November 28, 2017, the Group announcetd
the cornpletion of an USD 340 million aggregate
principal amaunt 9.5% Senior Secured Notes
due X027 offering. The L444/Reqs offering drew
demand from Institutional investors in both
Eurcpe and the US.

The pofEs hvve been assigned a B2 rating by
Moody's (megative outlsok) and & B- rating by
Standard & Poor's (stable outlook) with
squivaltent corporate ratings.

The net proceeds of the offaring of the notes
have been used to refinznce existing credit
facilibes,

fet cash flows

Welltec continued to generate strong cash flows
from operations undarpinned by margin
resilience, Improved processes and enduring
working capital disopline. The cash generated
was used g service interest payments,
repurchase of shares and conbinued vesbments
i D&E projects, patents and the fleet of tools,
trisctors and equipment,
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OUTLOOK

2018 js expacted to be ancther challenging year
for the industry as the ow Gl price enwiranment
conbinues to impact both operators and services
COmpanies,

#s we enter Into 2018 the global supply of oll
conlinues b oulpace demand which combined
with complex geopolitical topics continue to fuel
volatility and uncertalnty across markets,

As a resolt of the valatile market back drop and
the challenging industey environment Impacting
Weltec, JH Holding, AHerad &p5 s currently not
able tooffer gualified guidance for the full year
2018,

However, Welltac will continue to evaluate
forward looking reference points and commence
on autlook guidance again once visibility has
improved.

RISKS

Hisks Related to Our Business
Husiness god Indusiry-Relsted Risks

While we befieve our business to be rolatively
unaffected by macro-economic factors, it is ulti-
mately affected by the level of expenditures of
companies engaged in the production, explora-
tion and development of cil and gas.

Cyclical Markel

The oll and gas industry s Oyclical and while
demand for Welltec's products and services s
primarily dependent on customer's cperating
expenditures, demand for Welltec's products and
services also depends somewhat on the capgital
expendgitures of customers, A decreasa in oper-
pting expandiiures may have adverse effects on
Welltec's revenus and profits in the shorer
tern, while & docredse in the capital experdi-

tures may have adwerse effects on Welltec's
revenee and profits in the longer term.

Custarmears

Walltec's clients are typically not required to
make minimum purchases under =sales cantracts
and customers can typlcally terminate conbracts
without cause and &n short notice. Motwith-
standing our bread ocustomer base, Welitec has
ane customer that accounted for more than 15%
of our revenue, hence termination of this rela-
tionship would have an adverse effect on our
revenue and profits. As such, visibility with re-
spect to fulure revenues iz limited and there can
be no assurance that a trading relationship with
impartant customers will continue.

Competitors

Wellter competes with large multinational come-
panes that offer a broader portfolio of integrat-
ed services compared to Welltec, Further, Well-
fec s, to some extent, dependent on equipment
proviged by our competitoss, and acks or omis-
siares by such competitors could restrict us from
aocERsIng wells using their pguipment. In gen-
eral, cormnpetiton can result in DricNG pressurss,
lower sales and reduced marging that could have
an adver=e effect on Welltec's revenue and pial-
Its.

Oparational Risks
Lendice Quality

Welltess ability 1o provide a high guality product
and service provislan is paramount B0 secure
repeal sales with pew and existing clients, Dur
service quality can be negatively affected by an
inability 1o Atbract, brain and retain highly skiled
and qualified personnel to develop, manufacture
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and operale our equipment, wikh an adeersa
effoct on Welltec's revenue.

Supy Chain

Welltec may expenence copstraints, ancmalies
or interruptions in gur supply chaln, ultimately
restricting Welltec's ability to meet cusiomsar
expaciations. Such constralnts may be due ko
supply chain bottlenecks, delays or disruptions
in clearing goods from Customs oF svenks me-
stricting Welltec's abiliby to procure, develop ar
manufactune new equiprment or spane parts or
maintain the existing fleet, and such could nega-
Elwaly affect our results of gperatians

Catastrophic Events

Weiltecs busingss operations could be subject to
various catastrophic events, including blow outs,
expioskons, damage to oF loss of third party
property, Injury o personnel, reputational dam-
age and oil and hazsrdsus substance spilts inko
the environment, both om and off shore. Such
events cowld, If the Impact oF such event is sot
covered by Walltecs imsurance or are not sub-
lected 1o Welltec's contractual indemmification
protection, have an adverse effect on 'Welltec's
FEVENUE and profits

Financial Risks
Financial Exposura

Dee Lo Waellbec™s foreign activities in foreign cur-
rencies, Its profitfioss, cash flows and equity are
affected by changes In exchange rates fora
numiber of currences.

Forelign exchange Auctuations

The reporting currency' of the group |s LS dollars
and the Tunctional curmency for mast of the
group's subskdiaries |s that of the country in
whilch the subsidiary is domiciled. The functional
currency of the Danish cperatton and operabions
in-some other countries i US dollars, This re-

flocks the ravenue and principal source af finand-
ing. A& significant proportion of the group’s reve-
nues, expenses and other lizhilities are denomi-
nated |n currencies olher than the US dollar, in
particular Morweglan kroner, Danish kraner and
Canadian dellars, Fluctuations in the value of
other currencies as compared with the US dollar
could result in translation losses or gains.

Taxes

Welltes files income tax returns in multiple juris-
dictlens. Welltec's effective tay rate could be
adversely affected by several Factors, including
changes in the income taxed by or allocated to
the variows jurisdictions with differing statutory
tax rabes; changing tax laws; regulations and
interpretations of such tax |aws in multiple juns-
dictions; and the resolution of Issues arising
from tax audits or examinations together with
any redated inkerest or penalties. The detérming-
tion of local tax lability is always subject to re-
vigw ar cxamination by authorities in operating
jurtsdictions. If & tax authonty inamy jurisdiction
reviows filed tax returns and based on filing
proposes an adjusbment, induding adjustments
af transfer prices and terms applied, such an
adjustment could have & negative impact on
Welltec's net profit

Liguidity Risk

Wellteds ability to make payments, refinance
indebtedness, fund planned capital expenditures
and ather strategic investments will depend on
our ability to generate cash in the future. This is,
b0 a certain axtent, subject bo general economic,
financial, competitive, legsiative, regudatory and
other factors that are beyond our control, Well-
tec pxpects to continue making capital myvest-
ments in order to develop and purchase gddi-
ticnal equipment to expand our Services, in-
CrEASE Qur capacily and roplace existing equip-
maent, Such.capital investments require cash
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that could otherwise be applied to other busi-
ness needs, However, if Welltec does nob incur
the=e expenditures, our competitive strength
ey decling and cur business may be adversely
affected.

Legal Risks

Requiatory

Wellbec conducts business in multiple junisdic-
tions ima highly regulated industny. As such,
Wellter s, directly or indirectly, subfect to a
variety of federal, provincial, state and local
fawes, regulations and guldedings, |n all such Ju-
risdictions, including laws and regutaticns meilat-
ing ko health and safety, the conduct of opera-
tizns=, Including business ethics and trade com-
pliance, taxation, the protection of the anviren-
ment and the manufacture, management; trans:
portation and disposal of certain materiats used
in oparabions. Accordingly, Welltec could become
subject to liatilities relating to the violation of
such regulabions in mulbple junsdictions, with an
adverse ffect on profits

Technotogy

Welltec Is & technelogy company, congtantly
challenging the operational boundaries in the
industry: Howewer, third parties may assert that
our products, services, solubions and other intel-
factuzl property may Infringe on their propris-
tary nghte, Any such pobéntial, future claims,
regardless of merit, could result in rlti-
jurisdictional tigation which could mesult in sub-
stantial expenses, cause significant deiays and
riaterinlly disrupt the conduct of business and
have am adverse effect on our financial condition
and results of operationg,

Branches

JH Hakding, Allersd, ApS bas several branches
with sales activitses inm foreiagn countries. Please

see branch overviesw on page 77,

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSI-
BILITY

The following statement on Corporate Social
Responsibility {C5R) pursuant to the Danish
Financial Statement Act Section 992 and b s
part of the Management Commentary in the
2007 Annual Report. 1t also serves as the
company's Communication an Progress as
required by the UN Giobal Compact. We continue
to support and promate the principles of the LN
Global Compact in our sphicre of influence, in
particular by Inbegrating them in our business
aperations.

Corporate Soclal Responsibility Policy

Wellter focuses its CSR efforts on areas and
issues direckly affecting our business. We have
outliced our respongibility i polices developed
to comply with the objectives of TSR and
approved by the Board of Directors. These
principles are reviewed on a regular basis and
updated against refevant codes of corporate
givernance and intermationat stendards, inglud-
ing the UM's Universal Declaration of Heman
Rigtits, the ILO' Dedaration on Fundamenial
Principles and Rights at Wark, the OECDHs
Guidelines for Multinastional Enterprises, the Rio
Ceclaration on Environment and Development,
the LN Con= vention against Corruption, 25 wel
as appliczble legislation governing the interest of
our stakeholders, We work to make sure that
Wellter's business, Including the poople
cantributing to ik, Is not involved in or retatad Lo
any form of human rights dbuses, We ars
considenng how to develop @ more systematic
approech regarding our suppliers sxpectations in
astainabllity wsiues, including human rights and
labour.

Cur CSR Polcies are ncorporated ina Code of
Conduct applicable globally,
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The areas currently covered by tho Code of
Conduct are!

{i} Business Ethics, {Ii} Anti-Corruption, (iii}
Health, Safety and Environment, (Iv)
Employment, {v] Customers, and {vi})
Cammunity,

The respansibility of manitoring overall CSR
compliance has been delegated to the heads of
Legai, Human Resources, QHSE (Quality, Haslth,
Safety, and Environment) and commer- ciat
departments.

The polickes continue to be communicated to all
employees and are accessibie on bath our
wehsite and intranet, More- aver, a concerted
effort is made to ensung that thess are dE’fl‘.ﬂ'p'
racted in gur thinking and our way of doing
business,

Business Ethics
Bolficy

At Welltec "we say whatl woe do and we da what
wg say'. This principle s the back bone of
Welktec's Code of Condutt and promaotes
certainty in relation to all pur stakeholders that
predictability and reliability are the norm when
dealing with Welltec. It is our policy to comphy
with all lawe, rules and reqgulations applicabile to
our busingss and we strive to Tollow the course
of actien leading to the highest degree of
integrity in situations whére the law may be
permissive,

Implemantation

Integrity and ethical conduct s 8 fundamental
part of man- agement procedures and Wellter =
Code of Conduct and is an underlying driver In
all we do. The methods we employ to attain
resulbs are as important as Ehe results
themselves.

Welltec omployvees are expacted to parform heir
wark with hopesty, truthfulness and Integrity,
and conduct their business alfairs Fairly. all
amployees are responsible for the iImmediate

and accurate reporting to higher management af
work-réfated information of importance to the
gowerning guidelines, We strongly encourage
dialogue to make each obher aware of siteations
that give rise to ethical questions and to
articulate acceptable ways of handling those
situations,

ey Resuwits in 2017 and Fulture Plans

With the developrent of the Code of Conduct
came also a training prograrm for all gxisting
employees. The traimng program was continued
a5 mandatory for all new employess during their
onboarding process:

To the extent deemed relevant, Welltec
performs appropriate intemal Investigations Into
passible non-ethical behavior by employees
following Internal controls or whistle-bkowing.
We have in continuation of the investigative
findings applied conseguencas towards the
employeses whan relevant and continued to

strengthensd internal communcation in respect
of compliance programs,

Ta improve our @fforts to faclitate sound
business erhics, Wwe emphasize the use of our
whistie-bbawear program. No case was submitted
in 2017,

We have conbtinued impose an antl-trust training
program for all relevant employees,

Anti-Corruption

Palicy

rlr conwiction bo uphodd ethical standards i all
aur carporatbe sclivibies is 8 common mindset of
all cur employees and we stnve to do business
with custamers and suppliers of sound business
character and reputation. We have strict guide-
limes covering faciitation payments, bribery,
entertainment and gifts, and our screening pra-

cesses provide full transparency to mitigate the
nisk of corruption,




Tmplemeantiatian

Wellte: maintaing a gensrsl Partner Screening
Frogram applicable for agents, represenzatives
and Jodnt venture pariness (o terrifories where
transparency and corrupbion are immirent is-
gues, This comprisss a guestionnalee combined
with 3 review process under which a potential
partner is vetted for undue relationships and
channels of influence.

Furthermore, Welltec operates 8 zero-tolerance
policy towards cormuptive behavior of employess
and representatives, Each year we prompt all
employees to read the Code of Con- duct
including the sections on anti-cormiption, Tha
review is montored by the Legal Deparmment,

Key Results in 2007 and Future Flans

Three partner screenimg were performed n 20017
fnd ong reveaked

inadequate information why the partnership was
not endorsed,

In our screznings we continue to Lse extarnal
seroening partnens and their databeses,

We have further maintalned our Anti-Bribery and
Corruption program. We continue to improve the
screefing procedures, review proCasses A
further incorporate additional initiatives hased
on LS and LI anticormuplion legisiation,
including incorporating appropriate measures in
aur contracks, We slso Sarry on screening
wendors, Furthermore, we continue to manitor
the inttiatives and guidelines issued by releyvant
iMernational odies to identify policies and
procedures that could improsve our anti-
corruplion mMBasures,

‘We strongly oppose facilkabion payments.
However, Facilitaticn paymants are still a
chaliemge to same parts of pur business, and we
continue to train our employess in how o handla
these gituaticns and avold facilitation payments.
We focus in particular on employeessin high nsk
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countries and where interaction with pubile
authorittes is frequent.,

Henlth, Safety and Environment { HSE)
Policy

Cyr paramount concern is the health and safety
of our employess, customers and averyons elso
that cormes inte cantact with our activities. This
concern reaches far beyond such measures re-
guired under applicable law. Health and safety
underping all our operations and we conbinuously
manitar HSE performance and waork to identify
improvement initiatives.

Al our employees are aware that the heatth and
safery of people and protection of thie environ-
ment [£ an absolute priority. We strive to contin-
wiusly improve our envirenmantal performands
by efficient waste manasgement, maintenance
management, recycling programs and the pre-
ventian of pollution from our activities, Cur
fightweaight soluticns are based on a vision Lo
improve safety whilé reducing environmental
risks, fuel consumption and carbon footprint,
Respect for and preservation of the environment
is & ley element of our business proposibon and
as such an integrated way of thinking in Welitec.
The company does not have a separate cllinake
policy, because the company's business model In
iteal! imipdies dess use of energy and focuses on
sustainabllity.

ITmplemendation

HSE ts&n Integral part of decision-making, pro-
cesses gnd tralning, Comprehensive Incident
reporting systams are In place ta review and
bddress)

Any INury o near miss in relation to owr
activities, Performance statistics are kept
and analyzed to ensure adoption of best
practices probecting the heabth and safety of
individuals,
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i Any unintentional discharge into the en-
virgnmant of damaging substances of near
misses in relation to one of our operations.
These are carelully analyred [o Ensura
adoption of best practices in order to
protect the anvironment to the benafit of us
all.

Weekly Group management meetings are
opensd with a review on-any health and safety
isUes which ey have Gccurred, Al locations
have an HSE Officer employed to lead the HSE
effort, ensure compliance with Wellked's policies
and loczl legistation and conduct monthly meet-
ings where all employess are required to attend,

Mew hires attend an HSE introduction program
and participate in a Safety Card Dbservation
Program {SCOP) to report on and proactively
encourage cafe working practices,

Weliter's facilities are audited by the relevant
government authority, At any focal operation,
we ensure that respeck for the environment is
applied such thal sustalnabliity &nd recycling is
promoted and secured to the greatest extent
reasonably posside, while at the same Limse
clossly montonng consumption of chemicals,
waste, electricity, heat and water,

The Group QHSE function performs internal HSE
audits at the headquarters and local hases
worldwide in order to assess the effectivenass of
the internal QHSE Management System of Well-
ter. The audits are the prime instrument fior
reviewlng the business Interfaces internally be-
tevean HO and bases, and axternally with cus-
tomess to create specific action points for the
cycle of continuous iImpravement.

Kep Results in 2017 ang Fulure Plans
In 2017, 3 environmental acodents occurmed,

The number of recordable accidents (so-called
MTO, LTI, RWE and FTL) s increasing togather
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with the Total Recordable Incident Freguency
{TRCF), True safety can be achieved by a
culture, within and withouwt, which ensidres that
the safety of people and protection af the
environment is an absolute prioTiky,

Quality

Quality is, and has always been, desply
Ingralmed I all pracesses at Welltec. Welltec is
ISC 9001 certifi ed by "Det Norske Ventas®
(DN, wilh perodic recertification audits every
3 years. The latest recertification took place
durlng the second guarter of 201 7.

Furthermaore, oll operators, service partners and
euthorities perform externsl audits ko assess
Welitec's ability bo effectively manage the haz-
ards-associated with the services provided.

Local bases were audited by Total, Petronas,
Repsol Sinopec, Sakhalin Energy (SEIC), Shell,
B8P Halliburton and EMIL.

Employment
Paliey

In Welltec we believe that the employess, both
as individuals and a5 part of & team, are the
foundation of ocur business. Therefare, and with
consideration Lo the often challenging working
conditicns 0 the field, Welltec appties measures
which ‘g beyond the norm’ (o safeguard and
maxirmize the employees” health and safety
while perfarming thelr dutles,

Welltec recognizes a shared responsibility on
bBehall of &l empléyess to exercize the human
rights principies of mutual respect and dignity in
tll warking relationships and consequently
enforces a policy of zero Tolerance with regard to
harassment or discrimination. &l employses
have access to the whistieblowes system and
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complalnts regarding dEcrimination can be 1 led
thers.

welltec adheres to a Diversity and Equal
Cpportunity Empleyment Policy approved by the
Board of Directors in 2004, The pelicy formalizes
aur commitment to always choosing the best
person for the job regardiess of that person's
race, colar, religion, disability, gender, sexual
arlentation, age or nationality. Furthermare,
Wellber will actively work to increase the share
of females In management postions, for xam-
ple, by putting the needed extra effort into
Identifying refevant female candidates when
recruiting,

Implarmentation

Wellteo activaly recruits employess from many
sources, induding first-tier academic Institutions
as well as leading companees in the industry,
depending on the requirements of a given posi-
thon. & variety of objective profiling tools are
used to help assess the candidates, Further-
more, we actively encourdge mobility and career
progression within Wellec,

‘Welltec operates an extensive in-house training
program which covers core operational aspects
at wiell a5 sales skills and programs aimed at
fegal compliance. Participation s regestered and
tracked in the HR system, enabling on-going
identification of training needs and suppaorting
work-force planning

For long-term Il employess; we work clossly and
actively with local suthontes and municipalities
in arder to define Individual solutions, including
defipition of flex jobs {permanently reduced
work time), temporanily reduced work $ime,
redefimtion of work arss, elc.

Cur Waorkforce

The employes population is very diverss wilh
respect to nationalities, reflecting the truly glob-

al mature of the company. As such, thers are
around 50 nationalities emploved in Welltac.

A% s cofmman in the oll and gas industry, the
share of females s low in Welltee, As stated in
the section of policies, Welltec actively works 16
increase the share of females in managemaent
positions for oxample by putting the needed
extra efforts into idemntifying relevant female
candidates when recruiting; howsver recsulting
of new employess has heen modest in 2017,

Key Resuits in 2007 and Future Plans

2017 has seen significant focus throughout the
organization on the central importance of our
employees as Welltec works towards its mission
of transforming the up-stream cll and gas
industry.

The fowrth global survey of Employes Motivation
and Satisfaction was carmed out in the spring of
2017 with the aim of understanding the current
state of our employves group as well as
identifying sress improvements to improve
motivation. The survey was well recaived with
T7% of employess responding, @ minor decreass
from 2016, The survey showed that despite a
challenging year 77% of the employees are
proud ko work in Wellbec, gnd SEY% of the
amployess ars excited about their future career
in Welltec, The average job satisfaction is 3.8 an
& scale from 1 to 5 which is a slight decrease
from 3.% compared to 2016,

Thers have DEEN no Cheet reported in the
whisthe blower system regarding discrimination
o harassment

In 2017 Welltec has continued o fodus on
registration and tracking of employee skills and
competencies, All internal courses and Wellbee
operaticnal experence arg captured in the HE
database as well as the majority of our
employees’ previous job sxperience, education
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and participation in external courses, This
enables improved perormance in areas such as
aperational planning and mobility,

Women make up 13.5% of the total smpioyes
population which is a decrease of 0.5 percentage
points compared to 2016, Of management fevel
employees women make up 8% which = a
decrease of 2 percentage points compared to
20146, In December 2016, the frst worman was
appointed to Welltec's Senior Management Team
as Chief Human Resources Officer. The Senior
Manzgement Team consists of four members
aitopelttier

In terms of gencer equality, the Board had set
up & target of cne woman in the Board of
irectors by Apnil 1st 2017,

By end af 2017 the Board consisks of six
members elected by the shareholders, whereas
twa was elected in June 2017, One worman and
fise men are elected to the board and as such
thee Earget of having at least one female member
of the Board of Directors is reached. The goal is
Lo malntain onde woman in Ehe Board of Direciors
until 2022,

Customers
falicy

Welllec views customers a5 business partners

and pursues an open and transparent retation-
ship characterized by freguent dialog and & fo-
cus on serving their best interests.

It b5 olir L'Iﬂ-hI:'jr Lo provide EMUTH:IH.; that excel in
guality, conform o industry best practice, -and
adhiere Lo respansible standards of perdormance,
including taking due care and considerakion to
protection of the environment and the health
and safety of all people inealved.

We operate an open door policy In situations
where a customer or reguiatony body wishes to
investigate a non-successful operation or an

issue of regulatory non-compliancs. &l Hon-
optimal or non-compliant findings from the in-
ternal Wellbec investigation are openly disclosed
b0 achieve maximum Eransparency and optimal
lessons fearned.

Implementation

In certain situations, a failure investigation is
Initiated (o ensure:

that investigations requested by the clients
are performed,

that conformed and controlled methads are
fedlowed when handling misnins, covenng
from jobr planning, equipment;, procedures;
communication to human factors.

that lessons learmed are propery
cammunicated throughout the organization
in order to minimize the risk of re-
OCCurrence

that failure report = prepared an & Limaely
manmner for the chent, prier to officially
chosing the investigation.

Key Resulfs in 200 7 and Future Plans

Welltec's Group QHSE department continuing its
Imvalvement, to ensire the Bighest standards
are applied to match heightened expectations
from customers as the scope and complaxty of
services inCragse, An improved qualicy related
imvestigation procedure was implermented and
put jnte practice o streamline the process, The
number of investigations, which reguired
involverment fram Group QHSE department, has
decreased In 2017 compared to 2016,

A global Eraining pragram continues to Increase
expertize in the use of our aperational planning
software e ensure continuous Emprovement of
service guality on jobs perdormed. The program
underlings the constant focus on maintaiming the
very highest levels of service quality and 15
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reflected in the continued service guality
delivery at or above 96%, Althougih, this is a
high percentage, we =trive to reach a higher
level,

Community

Pollcy

At Wellter, we inherantly share a responsibility
that reaches beyond our Immediate business
and has an impact on the interests of all our
stakeholders, These encompass not only our
shareholders but al=o our customers,
employees, suppliers, the local communities In
which we operate, as well as the surmounding
erwironment and the furman beings aotupylng It

Improving the environment i and around our
operations is an integral part of our business,
We operate from a significant number of
properties ina varlety of countnes, and we have

responsibility to our empiovess, 1o the people
living and working nearby as waell as the
environmeant. It Is our pelicy there- fore to
engage with the local community as both a
nelghbor and resident and support elfforts (o
improve the local arga, for example by
addressing antisocial behavior, crime and
vandalism as well &5 promoting road safety.

Implementation and Future Plans

We actively promote engagement betwesn our
staff and the community, supporting local
commiinity -based projects and charities,
including  fund-raising and  Inltkatives far the
development and education of young pecple In

the areas where we operate,
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STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT ON
THE ANNUAL REPORT

‘e have today considered and apgroved the
annual repart of 1H Holding, Allerad, ApS far the
financial year January 1, 017 to December 31,
2017,

The consaldated fi nancial statements and
parent fimancial statements are prepared in
accordance with international Financial
RApporting Standards as adopted by the EU and
further requirements In the Danish Financisl
Statement act,

In our opinion, the consolidated Ananclal
statements and the parant financeal statements
give & true and falr wiew of the groug’s and the

Allerpd, July €, 2018
Expcutive Board;

parent's financkal position at December 31, 2017
as well o5 of thair fmancial perfonmannce snd
thedr cash il ows for the financlal year January §,
2017, ta December 31, 2017,

We alsa balleve that the managemant
commEentsry cantaing a falr review af tha
eevelopment of the growp's and the parent
company’s activities and financial pasition,
together with & descripthan of the principal risks
and uncertainties that the group and the parent
company face.

We recommend the anneal repart for adoption at
the annual General Meeting.

I -
AT ——
H bmarin Jan Hansan-—

Chief Executive Oificer

Chief Executive Ofioer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of JH Holding, Allerpd, ApS

Our gualified Opinlon

In our opinton, excepting the effect of the matter
menticned in the section Basls Ffor gqualifed
opinior, the Comsolidated Firandal Statements
and Parent Financial Statements give a true and
fair wiew ol the Group’s and the Parent
Company’s financlal position at 31 December
2017 and of the results of the Group's
operations and cash fiows for the financial year
1 January to 31 December 2017 in accordance
with Imternational Financial Reporting Standards
a5 adopbed by the EU and further requirements
in the Danish Financial Statememnts Act

We have audited the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the Parent Company Financial
Staterments of JH Holding, &llerad, ApS for the
financial year 1 lanuary - 31 December 2017,
which comprise  inoome statement, balance
sheet, statement of changes in equity and notes,
incleding a summary aof significant accounting
policies, for both the Group and the Parent
Company, as wall as statement of
comprehensive mcome and cash Mow statemeant
far the Group and the Parent Company

(“finencizl statements™),

Basis far gualified opinlan

The blslogical asssts of the Group as of 31
December 2017 amounts to US0m 24 related to
45 herses. For 28 horses we have only partly
obtain sufficient and appropriate sudit evidence
regarding  existence and  ownership too the
horses., Therefore, we guabfy owr  opinizn
regarding the bindogical assets of the Group as
of 31 December 2007 and the potential impact
on profit and loss in 2017,

We conducted our audit In accordance  with
Intermationsl Standards on Auditing (15As) and
the additional reguirements spplicable i
Denmark. Our responsibilities under those
standards  and reguirements are  further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financlial Statements section of owr
report,

We are Independent of the Group in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professicnal
Accountants {IESEBA Code} and the additional
requirements applicable In Denmark, and we
have Rlfilled cur other ethical responsibilibes in
apcordance with these reguirements. We baliews
that the audit evidence we have oblained iz

sufhcent and appropriate to provide a basis for

our gualified opimion.

Statemont on Management's Review
Management s responsible for Management's
Reviaw.

Dur gpinion an the fnancial statements does not
cover Management’s Review, and we do not
express: any  form of  assurapce  condusion

thereon,

In connection with ocdr audit of the fnancial
statements, our  responsibility s te read
Management’s Review and, in doing s0, consiler
whether Management’s Review is materially
inconsistent with Ltha financial statements ar our
knowledge obtained during the awdil, or
piherwkae appears 1o be materially misstated.

Morecver, it Is oor respons:bilty té conskles
wheiher Management's Review provides the
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information required under the Danish Financlals
Statements Act,

Based on the work we have parfegnmed, in gur
digw, Managements Beview B In accordancs
with the Consolidated Financial Staterments and
the Parent Company Financial Statements and
has been prepared 0 actordance  with the
reguiremants of the Danish Financial Statement
Act, We did nol  Identify  any  matenal
misstatement in Management's Réview.

Management's Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation
of Conzolidated Financial Statements that give a
true amd Ffair wiew n acoordance  wikh
International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the EU and further reguirements in
the Danish Firancia! Skatements Act and for the
preparation  of  Parent  Company  Financial
Statements that give a true and Fair viewy in
aocordance with the Danlsh Financial Statements
Act, and Tor such  internal  control  as
Management determines s necessary o enable

r

the preparation of financial statements that are
free from matenal misstatement, whether doe o
fraud ar error,

In préparing the finencial  statements,
Management i responstble for assessing the
Group's and the Parent Company's ability to
continue as & going concermn, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concem basis of accounting in
preparing  the financal statements unless
Management elther intends to liquidate the
Group of the Parent Company of [0 cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but o

di 56,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to  oblain  reasonable

gssurance about  whether  the  finencial

statements as a whole are free from maternal
misstatement, whether due to freud or error,
and ko |lssue an Buditor's report that Includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance s a high level of
assurance, but 15 not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1%As and the
addicignal reguirements applicabile In Denrmdark
will always detect a material misstatement when
It exists, Misstatements can anse from frawd or
grrgr and are confidered matenal i, individuziby
or In the aggregate, they could ressonably be
expected to influence the econamic decisions of
users takem on the basis of these financial
statemeanis.

Ag parl of an audil conducted in accordanca with
1545 and the additronal requirements applicable
in Denmark, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughowt
the audit. We atso!

= [dentily and assess the nsks of matenal
misstaterment of the finanoal statements,
whether due to fraud or eror, design and
parform  Auodit  procedures responsive  Eo
those nsks, and obtain audit evidence that i
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basiy
for our opinion. The risk of not detedcting a
raterial misstatement resulting from fraud
iz higher than for one resulting from error as
fraud may Invobve collusion, forgery,
intentlenal amissionsg, misrepresentations, or
the cverride of internal controd.

« Obtain an enderstanding of internal conbrol
relevant to the budit in order bo design audit
procedures that are  approgpriate im0 the
circumstances, bul nol for the purpose of
EXpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Groups and the Parent Companys
internal contral,

= Evaluate the appropriabeness of accounting

policses  used and the reasonableness of
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accounting estimates and refated disclosures
miade by Managemsant.

«  Conclugs on  the approprialeness of
Management’s use of the going concerm
basis of accounting In preparing the financial
statements and, based on the awdit evidence
optained, whether a material uncerfainty
exisle related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
and the Parent Company’s alvility to conthnee
as a going concern, If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required
ko draw attention in our suditor's repart bo
the related disclesures in the financial
statements or, If such disclosures  are
inadequate, to medify  our opinion. Qur
comclushons are hased on the audit evidence
obtained up [0 the dabe of our suditor's
report. However, future avents or conditions
may cause the Group and the Parent
Company to cease to continue as a going

CONCeTm.

e  Evaluate the overal presentation, structore
and contents of the financial statements,
inciuding the disclosures, and whether the
finandcial slatements répressng the

underfying transactions and events n 3

manmer that gives a true and fair view,

Hellarup, July &, 2018

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Shatsutorisermt Revisionaparinermselskab
Furene s Registration No. 33 77 1231

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit ewidencs
regarding the financial information of the
entitles or business activities within the
Group 0 BXpress an opinian  an  the
Consolldated Financlal Statements. We are
respensible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group awdik, We remain
solely responsible for our audit opindan,

We communicate with those charged with
foverdncs regarding, ameng other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant  audit  findings, including  any
significant deficiencees in internal control that we
identity durng cur audit

Reporting obligations under gection 7(2) of
tha Danish Executive Order on Approved
Auditors” Reporks

NMan-compligrice with the provisions of Danish
fegislabion on loans fo shareholders

Contrary Lo section 210 of the Danish
Companies Act, the Company has granied a loan
to one of the Company’s shareholders, by which

Management may incur labklity.

The Company failed to comply with Danish bax
legislation in connection with granting loans to
shareholders, by which Management may Incur
lizblity.

G Do

Tue Stensgard Sorensen

State-futhorzed Public Accountant
mne32 200
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017, 2016 AND 2015

APS ANNLAL REPORT 2017 22

(LSD tnousands) ote 2017 2016 3015
POV o L aatmnrebbidasen lontbnbid b rta blanenphi s i bs s AL b i b b i 169,874 HLE 1 S5 A5
Cost B services ol o ainibd i Makbihd i sasevst i iess sekda J.8 _ (331 3007 (139434} [(1498975)
E e 38,574 60,955 99,675
Walug peljustments af biological Eesels " i3 (3,885 2,829 I,199
Developmsnt and manuleciuning coste. . Wt il i il 1,4 {3116 13,0551 {2404}
dddriinrebratmee and gales COBEE Lo iaie e seaer e iereed 1 (18 1,4 thh, H29} (94,269 (BE.3A0O]
Armcrbzstion of poguirse) intangitded wp Bminess combination ..., ] (h50).  (hEIAES  (10.364]

Operating profit/ (loss] (EBIT) before speclal tams, .

(25.606) (46.668) 11,766

S PN I | |OI kb b Lk B bbsinid Py TR 5 (43,957] €3 3931 (B hiia)
Operating profit/ (loss) (EBIT) oo e serreres e e (B8, 558) (52,000) 13,266
Financial meame ... _— .. [ 15,365 14,948 47 576
FINBTE Rl BRI o s os ik s b S R P e 7 o__[GEGEDY  (d44.397]  [/4.874)
oo LAl orm o o i o s b B s s 9 (i11,873) (B1,452) (19181}
T R L e T e L e S ] &, 007 11,454  [f4,668)
EDE O NPT i ek b H b b Fobser e b bt flosE6d) (6R.0EE) [(33.849)

Othor comprehansive incoma /[ loss] far the year
Iems that will be reclessiiien subsequently o 1he income
siplemend, when spociin condgilions. sre mel:

Uprpalizes sechangn rate adjustments of foregn subeidiares and

B B T T T duiiaivn bl i d o b bf 2 oo b | | kb B T PR NI N Tty b 120 1,633 (12024}
Totl comprehensive income/ (fose) (09.667) [G6H,165) IIEIBEJI

Allocatlon of profit/{lods) fer the year

Predst/tloss) loe LFD vear siindsiisaiie o)

JH Hiolding, #llerod, Aps sharegholders” share of profit
hon-contrallng mtcresis share of profici{loss} for the pear

{B0,047)  (40,810) (20611)
Lo B ] (A9 0BE] (135038

{105,866) [69,998) (33,848)

Total comprehensive lncome/ [ loss] attributable tor
IH Holding, allersd, Aps sharghalders™ share of comprehensive
lee=s,,

Hon=-contrallirig nlerests’ share ol comprenansing oss.

§55,51)  (40,167)  {28,995)
Ll 1 6 [2BO03) (16,879}

(98.667) (66,165} (45674}



JH HOLDING, ALLERDD, APS ANNUAL REPORT 2017 23

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

{UFSE thausands) _Hole 2017 2016
Equity

ERTIIS L B o i P L Ul s ey L R R 17 BH gy
Cusrancy translation reseree oo PP T (22,2351  [26,738)
Retained sarnings ... S S S e ¥ : 128312 i3 93%
Eguily attribubable to eqguity holders of tho parent COmMPaNY b 105,965 127,277

Misneponbroliing dmlarest B
TORRN BTN S b aes 153 005 ittt b murivesdinkierie a5 s o8 i ik b B
Nan-current liablifties

Deferred TN MaBMLIES i b isaiiraseisl 1 fagamis bbb at fiddme by b st e g

FiNaece Ease COMITHEITIENLE 11 i iaiiiiiiabbas | s e b | 4 P P 144 71 P FETH N APFE T 1T
EC= 1 e T Y T Ry T T L TR P P PH I iy VRN T Lt R Y AT AR TRy

Tatal non-current fabilities........ RTINS Bt 8 8

Current liabllitios

Currert portion of non-Curreit HBEIIES. 4\ e i e e e e e
Currert tex habilties b b T
Qlher pevabiles

Torted current TEABITRIES oo aapiineiar st issasp rasanes e

TR AN UL IR i e e 4 e R S "

Tokal eguity Bod WabkIMEIeS .. (i i sesirr e s sl

GO ENS 73,805
166,570 201,163

1 13856 25,505

5] S.717 H.047
e 3FEEG  203.2a)
2.5RS 423
356851 B55 524

1% 3 Eah T %0
AR LA

P i, 231

2 e 28,001

43,937 53,903

I8, 778 408 438

— 205348 810538



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017, 2016 AND 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017, 2016 AND 2015

JUSE thousands) Nole 2017 1016 2015
Opesating prafit TERTTY . cichins i il (b ada)  (s2,001) 13,264
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Capital InCIease o w4 i o RN s oty 131,843 i 235 724
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Cash and cash Bquavalenis ab DL 0T conon e 23 GG fil,4%3 43 A&E
EBxchange rate adlustment at 00200 .0 s FTATTTE 1,853 £1,531% L1470}
Cash and cash equivalents at 31,13 35,350 53.636 51,457

Hereol resiricted cash e N ] FiLES w2
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — GROUP
1. Accounting policles

1.1 Basis of accounting

The consolidated finandal statemants for 2017 are presented in accorddnce with Intemational Financial
Reporting Sthndards ('IFRS") a5 adopted by the EU and and further reguirements in the Danish Financial
Siatement act. Please see the Danish Executive Order on IFES adoption ssued in accordance with the
Dansh Financial Statement Act,

The consolidated fingncial statements are presented in thousands of US dallar (USD), which is reqarded
ag the primary corrency inorelation o the group’s activitics.

The consolidated financlal staternents have been prepared on the historical cast basis, except Tor certain
derivative fingncial imstruments which are measured at falr value, The principal accounting policies
adopted are =2t out below,

The cansolidated financial stalemonts are presented in accordance with Ehe new and revised slandands
{IFRE/IAS) ard Interpretations (IFRIC) which apply for the financial yoar whiel bad no ¢ffect an the con-
sdiclated financial statements.

The accounting polices are unchangod compared to L0186,

1.2 Future IFRS changes

it the daie of the poblcation of these coneclidated financial statements, a number of new and amended
arandaras and interprétatio |'|5-,|‘I-B'~'E (37514 'r'H entered inbo force or Bavo not vt been adopted by the EU.
Therefore, they are not incorparated in the consolidaied financial statements,

IFRS 15 Revenue from Conbracts with Customers i ¢fTective Tor financial years Beginning on or after 1
Joamuary X018, IH Holding, Allerod, ApS has conswderad the new revenus recognition reguirements in
relation be the nature of the activities in the Welltec Group and determined that the standard will have
limited to nan impact on revenud recognition and measurement, while the level of disclosuie s
determined toincrease. Welllec has decided nol to praim pement TFRS 1% for 2017,

[ASE has aler issued JFRS @ "Financial Instrumonte®. [FRS 9 *Financial Instruments” 5 parl of 1AS8%
profect to replace LAS 38 *Financial Instruments; Recognition aned Mepsurement®; and the new standard
will change the dassification, presentation and measurement of finandial instruments and bedging
requirements. JH Helding, Allermed, ApS i assessing 1he impedt of the standard, but it is not expected o
fayve any matenab mpoct on future consolidated financial statomonts

IFES 16 "Leasing” iz effective for annual porisads Boginnmg an oF atlér 1 Ianuary Z0019:

JH Holding, Allerad, ApS has begun analyzing the possilble sffecis of IFRS 16, as Wellted has spime
operating lease commitments, IFRS 14 is expecied (o Increase none-ourient assels ("Right-of -use assets)
as well as lease liabilities, and will alss mpact profit & loss, cash How stalement and eqguity (o 8 lesger
decras,

1.3 Recognition and measursment

Assets are recognized In the statement of financial posttion IF It is probable that future linancial benefils
will Ao to the group &nd the value of the 2sset can be measurcd reliably,
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Liabilities are recoghized in the statemant of financial position il they are probabie and can be measured
reliably. On initial recognition, assets and labllities are mepsured at cost or fair value. Subsequently as-
sets and labilities are measured as described for each item below,

Incame is FE{WHIIH im the skatement of mmpr&hrnswr_l Income as earned and includes value ad]'ust-
ments of financial assets and liabilitles measured at fair value or amortized oost.

1.4 Consalidated financial stalements

The consolidated finandal statements comprise the parent company and the group enterprises (subsidiar-
i) that are controdled by the perent company. Control is achieved where the parent company, either
directly or indirectly, holds more than 50% of the voting righis or In ary other way possibly or aciually
exerciues controfling influence over a subsidisry. IT the parent company holds less than 50% of the share
capital, control exizts when the parent company under agreement bas more than 50% of the vating
rights, has the power to govern financial and operating pelicies of the subsidiary, 1o appoint members of
the Boasrd of Directors or bo cast the majority of votes at meestings of the Board of Durecters of the subsid-
mry.

1.5 PBasis of consolidation

The: consplidastied financial stsloments are prepared on the basis of the inancial statements of the parent
company and its subsidiaries, which are all prepared in accordance with the group's accounting palicies,
Lpen consolidation, Intra-group income and expenses; batances, investments and dividends as wall as
profits and |osses on transacticons bebween the consalidaked enterprises are climinated.

Subsidiaries’ fingncal statement tems are recodnized in full In the consoliated financial statements
MNon-controlling inberests" pro rata share oF prafitfloss and equity = shown as soparate line items in tho
statement of comprehensiee income and in the group’s equity, rEspectively,

1.6 Foreign currency translation

On initial recognition, transachons denamingted in foreign currencies are translated st the transaction
date exchange rate, Recelvobles, payabies and other monetary fems densmirated in foreign currencles
that have not been seftled at the end af the reporing peried are transiated using the exchange rate at
the end of the reporting pericd. Exchange differences that anse belwesn the rate at the rensaction dale
and the gxchange rabe effoctive gt the payment date ar the cxchenge rate at the end of the reporting
penod are recognided in the statement of comprehensive income as financll incorme or finanoa! expens-
es. Property, plant equipment fleet, Intanglble assets, inventones and other non-monetary assels pur-
chased In foreign currencies and measurcd an the basks of histarical cost are translated at the transactipn
date exchange Fate, M non-monetary items are restated at fair valile, they are translkated uslng the =x-
chiange riote al the date of restatomenl.

When fereign subsidiaries that use a functicnal cuirency different from USD are recoanized Im the consol-
idated financial staternonbs, the statement of comprehensive income i ransisted al average exchange
rates on & monthly basie unless sech rates val'y significantly. from the actual exchange rates at the trans-
aClion dates, In the latter case, the actual exchange rates ane used, Statement of financial position tems
= translated wsing the exchange rates at the ond of the reparting period, Goodwill 1 consderod (o bdlong
1o the relevand enlily acquired and is ranslated using the exdhangs rate at the end of Lhe reparting peri-
ol

Exchanges differences rasuibing frbrm the transialion of forelan gntities” equity al the beginning of the year
using the end of the reporting pericd exchange rates and by translaling etatements of comprehengive
ingame from averane Cxchange retes o tho exchango rates ab the cod of the reperting period are reoog-
nized in other comprebensive income. Similarly, exchange differences resulting from changes made ina
foreign entity’s ather comprahensive income are also taken to other Comprabarmive nosme.
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When toreign subsidizries that use USD as thelr functional currency but present their financial stetements
in anothar cutrency ane necognized In the consolidated financial statements, monctary assets and abill-
tles are transizbed using tha end of the reporiing peried exchange rate, Nan-monetary assets and Habili-
ties measured on the basis of historical cost are translated using the transaction date exchange rate.
Non-monetary items measured st fale value are ranslated at the exchange rate &b Lhe Lime of the last
fair value adjustment.

The items in profit or loss are translated ab average exchange rates on a monthly basis, with Lhe excep-
tion of items deériving from non-monetary assets and labilities, which are translated using the kistoricsl
rates applicable to the refevant non-monetary assets and lEbillties.

1.7 Derivative financial instruments

o inltial recogniton; oerivative financial instruments are measured &t fair value. Directly attributable
ewpenses refated to the purchiase or issues of a dervative financial instrument are expensed.

Subsequent to initlal recognition, denvaltive financial instruments are measured at fair value al the emd of
the reporting petod with changes in fair value recoghized directly In profit or loss as finenclal income of
financlal expenses,

The group does not apply hedge actounting to s dervatees Nnancal instruments.

1.8 Shara-based paymernt

Share-based Incentive arrangements under which employees can opt to recekve new shares in Welltec
Intoinational ApS (equity arrengements) are measured at the eguity instruments’ fale value at the grant
dabe and areé recognized in profit or less under stalf cosls owver Lhe vesting perod. The related set-off
ontry s recognized directly in equity.

1.2 TIncome taxes and deforred fax

IH Hotding, Allered, ApS' Canish subsidiarios ane jointly taxed with the principal sharcholder I4 Halding,
Alberod, ApS, The current Danigh income tax is allocated armong the jointly taxed compsmies in proportion
to their taxable income {(full allocation subjedd to reimbursement in respoect of tax lpszeg),

Tax for the yoar congsts of current tex Tor the year and changes in deferred tax. The portion of tax at-
tributable to profit s recognized in the income statement and the portlon of ta¥ atiributable to entries
directly in other comprehensive Income & recopnilzed o olher comprehensive income. Tho paarticn ol 1ax
attributable to eguity transactions is recoonized directhy in equity.

The current tax payable or receivable & recognized in the statement of financial position, computed a5
tax calcklated on the taxable Income for the year, adjusted for prepaid tax

The éurrent tax charge for the year 1§ caloulated based on the tax rabes and tax legidlation in mach coun-
try applicable on the balance shoet date,

Deferved tax 15 recognized on all temporary differences between carrying values and tax-beted values of
assets and Rabilithes, except from deferred tak on all tormporary differences on inlklal recognition of goed-
will ar on initial receanibien &F 3 transaction that 15 fot & business combination, and for sehich the lempo-
rary difference found al the time of inltial recognition nelther affects profit sor loss for the year nor texa-
bl incomie,

Cefarred bax s calculaled based an the éxpected recovery of each assel snd the settlement of pach liabil-
ity, respectively,
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Ceferred tax Is measured at the tax rates that are expeciad to epply to the penod when the asset is real-
ized ar the Hability sekthed, based on the tax rates and tax logisiatian that have been enacted oF substan-
tively enacted in the respective countrigs on the balance sheet date, Changes In deferred tax resulting
from changed bie rates of tx rulis are recognlzed in profit or foss, uniess the deferred tax i attributable
to tems previously recognized in sther comprefensive InCome of Inequity. If &6, such changes are also
recognized in other comprehensive income or in egquity,

Exchange adjustments on deferréd 1ax are recognized &s part of the years adjustment in defermed tax.

Changes in tacal ths rates, affecting deferred tay, are ueed and thus affecting the value of the caleulated
deferrad tax sssel, sliematively deferred tax hability a1 year-end.

Deferred tar assebs, inciuding the tax base of tag loss carrylforwards, are recognized in the statemesnt of
financial pesition at their estimated realizable vahlie, either as & set-olf against deferred tax labilities or
ms fiol tax dssobe for set-0ff against Tulure positive taxable incoma. At the end of each reporting penod, it
is reassessed whether sufficient taxable Inggme |s probable to arise in the future for the deferred Lax
assot to be used,

Balances calculated according to the rules on interest deductibility limitations in the Danish Corporate
Imcomie Tax ACt are alleated acoording to & JEnt taxabon sgreonwent betwieen tho companies thal ae
subject (o deguctibllity mitation in proportion to thelr share of the total imitation. Deferred tax liabilities
in respect of these balonces are recognized in the stotement of finbncial position; whereas deferred tag
assets are recognized only if the criterls for recognition of deferred tax assets are met.

Statement of comprehensive income

1.10 Revenpe

The group provides multiple solutions to oll and gas companies around the world at thedt onshoere and
pffshore lodations using proprietary remote-control precisipn robotic equipment that Wellbec™ designe and
manufactures,

Provision of sefvices iz recognized in revende when the work s performed or when the agreed service |s
provided

Income from contracied develepmont prajects on third parcs’ 2ocouint 5 pooognlaed A9 rovenus a: of
whien Wellte delivers the development services to the customers and such services are considered e
provide added vakie to the custemers.,

Revenus from sales of products 15 recognided in the income statement o delivery and ransfer of rizk to
the buyer have taken place before year-end and if the income can be reli@bly measured and s expectied

{o bt poediviog.

Fevenue s measured at fair value of the consigeraticn received or recelvalle, I an interést-fres credil
has been arranged for payment of the conssderation recaivabie that s longer than the usual credit period,
thie fair value of the consideration is determined by discounting future payments recedvable, The differ-
ence patwesn falr value and nominal amount of the consideration is recoanized as financial income in
profit or lose by applying the effective intercst method.,

Hevenus is recorded net of VAT, dutles, etc, collected on behalf of & Lhird party
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1.11 Cost of services provided

Cost af services provvided comprises dirsct and indirect expenses Infurred o realize revenoe, incloding
salaries, deprediation and amartization

1,12 Development and manufacturing costs

Davelopment and manufactunng costs comprise 2l development and sngineering costs that are nalb capi-
tallzed, including redated impairment losses,

1.13 Administrative amd sales cosis

Adminletrative and salés costs comprise costs required 1o sustaln the business including finance, 1T, legal,
HE and othier evorhead costs.

1.14 Special items

Spedial tems consist of costs of a special rature in relation to the activities of the group, Including costs
of structurel changes-and other significant amounts of & one-off patune. These items are shown separato-
Iy to facifitate the comparabiliby of Hwe profit or loss and including impairment losses-to provide & betber
picture of the operational results,

1.15 Fimapcia!l incoms and expenses

These Rems comprise nterest income and expenses, the Intérest portion of finance lease payments, real-
ized &nd unrealized capital gains and lossac on payables and transacilons in forelgn currencies, amarliza-
tlgn premium/atiowance on debt, otc. ag well as Inberest on Loy,

Staterment of financial position

1.16 Intangible assels
Goodwill

Lipan initial recog niteon, aoddwill s reoogniged inthe statement of fnancial position and measurod as the
difference between cost of the enterpnse acqguired and the far value of the assets, liabilties and contin-
gent labilities acquired

When goodwill is recognized, the geodwill ansbent e distributed on those of the group’s activities geper-
ating separate payments {cash-generating units), Determination of cash-generating units folfows the
mansagement structure and inkerrial fimadce manageoment and roporting of the greug:

Subseguently, goodwill 5 meastired al cosl less atcumulaled write-downs, There is no amertization of
goodwill bul Y careying valug of goodwlll s Tested Tor impairment.al lezst once 8 year together with the
other Inng-term asseke in the cash-gencriting unit to which the goodwill is allocated. It s weltton dawn bo
recoverable ameunt in profit or loss IF the accounting value excesds the recoverable ameunt, this repre-
senting the klgher of the fair value of the assot less expected disposal costs and the valug-in-uge, The
recovershle amopunt is generally deétermined as the present valise of the expected future net cash flows
from the cash-generating wunit fo which the goodwill is aliocated. Impaioment psses of aoedwill are in-
cluded in proft or less endar amartization snd impairment losses of intangible assets

Developmeant projects

Development projects on clearly defined and Identifiable seivice equlpment and processes are moognized
as intangible assats i it = prabable that the service equipment or process will gensrates future Minancial
penefits for the group, and the development costs of each asset can be measured refiably, Other devel-
apment costs are recogiized as costs in the profit or loss as ncurred
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Dn Inillsl recognition, development costs are measwured at cost, The cost of development projects com-
prises costa such as salarles and other costs that are diregtly attributable 1o the development projects
[e.q. field bests) and are needed to complebe the project; calculated from the time al which the develop-
ment project first meets the specitic criteda for beng recognized a4 2n &58e1

Complated development profecks are amortized on a stratght- llne basis using the estimatad useful lives of
the asseis, The amoriization pericd 15 usually five yvears, but in certain cases il may be up to 20 years F
the longer amortization period ks considerad bo better reflect the group's benefit from the developed
product, lc. For gevelapment projects protecied by intellactiszal property righls, the maximum amortiza-
tien period i€ the remaining duratien of the relevant rights, however, no moie than 20 years,

Gevelopment projects and other intanglble assets are written down 1o recoverable amournt, Development
profects in progress are tested at least onoe a yoar for impairment. Borrowing costs to fnence the n-
vestments 0 development projects gre recognized in cost of these assets il such expenses miste to quali-
fying assets for which their development period last longer than 12 manths, Other barrowing costs are
Included im finance expenses in the starement of compre hengive incoms

1.17 Other intangible assals

Acgquired intellectual property nobts in the form of patents and lKenses 5 measured at cost less gccu-
milated amortization and impairment losses. Patents are amortized aver thelr remaining duration, Lesasal-
Iy 20 years, and licenses arg amortized over the term of the agreement, [T the actual usaful |ife is shomer
than tho remalning duration and the term of the agroement, respectively, amortization i made over such
shorter useful life

Separabla intangible assets scquired through business combinations are brand, cusiomer relationship and
technolegy. Brand s not amoriized as the useful lifeis considered Indelinite. Customer nelabonship is
amartivsd on o straghl-ling basis over its estimated useful life of 10 years. Technology s amartized on &
straight-line basts over ks estimated useful life of 10 to 20 yvears.

1. 18 Tangibile assels

Land and bulldings, plant and machinery as well as other fixtures and fittings, tools and cquipmoent are
measured db cost less accumulaled depreciation and impairment losses. Land is not depreciated,

Cost Eﬂl‘lk-pd'"_'-'EE the acquiztion price, costs dircctly attributable 1o the acjuisition and preparation costs of
thi asset untll the time when it is ready 1o be put inte operation. For assets manufactured and owned by
the group, cost comprises expenses directly attributable to the manufacturing o the asset, ineluding ma-
teriaks, componegnts, sub-suppligrs rent, atectricity and laboring cosfs. In the year when the tool is com-
pieted and ready to generate income, ILis recopnized under “Plant equiprment and tleet”. Durng construc
Thory, Phie Rsset (& recoghiged uider "Plant equipment and Boet umntder consbruction’

For assets held upder finance eases, cost is measured as the lower of the asset's fair volue or present
value of fulure lease payments.

The basiz of depreciation (= cost less estimated residual value after the end of useful life, The residuial
value |z the estimatad amount Thet would be-earned IV selling the assel today net of selling costs i the
assot i of an age and a copditon that s cxpectod after tho end of usetul life stralght-line degprecation s
made on the hasls of the fallowing estimated useful lves of the Bssefs:

Bullding=! 3550 years

Leasehold improvements: 3-10 years

Flant equipment and flesl: 3-10 pears.

Oiher fixlures and fittings, tools and equlpment. 3-10 years
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Leated assels are depreciated according to the feass term period,
Dépreciation methods, useful lives and residusl amounts are reassessed annually.

Froperty, plant equioment and fleet are writien gdown 1o the lower of recoverable omount and camying
amaount.

Inwestment properties are initially measured &l cost, consisting of the property's purchase price and any
directly relsted cost-associatod with the aoguisition

After the inilial recognition, the properios are measured at fair valie which represents the amoont that
edch propery can be gold at, toan independent boyer or ak the present value of the properbies” expected
future cash flows. When calculating the present value, a discount rate s applied according to-the current
yiad requirement for the individual propertles, The fiscal vear adjustment is measured al fair value and is
recognized In Ehe profit and less statement.

The properties’ Tair value 15 reassessed annuvally on the basis of the farr values.

1.19 Impairment of property, plant egufpment and Meet and ntanglble assels

The carrying amounts of property, plant equipment and fAoet and intangible assets with definite useful
lives are tested at the end of the reporting pericd for any indicatlon af impairment, IF impaired, the re
coverable amount of Ehe Bsset is estimated (o determing the need for any write-down and the exfent
thereof,

The recoverable amount of Intangible assets with Indefinite useful lives, development prajects in pro-
gress, brand and gtodwill is estimated anniually irrespective of any rocorded Indigations of impalrment.

It the asset does not generate cash flows separately from other assets, an estimate is made of the recov-
erable amount of the smaliest cash-generating undt of which the asset forme part,

The recoverable amaunt (s calculated as the bigher of the asset’s and the cash-generating unit's falr val-
ue less sefting casts and not present value, When the net present value |5 determined, estimalied Tutore
carh fows are discounted & presont valug Using & dischunt rake thal reflecks current market estimates of
the value of money in terms of time, as well 2= the particelar risks related o the asset and the cashy
genersting unit, respectively, and for which no agjustment s mado in the estimated future cash Fows,

If the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash-gengrating unlt is estimated (o be kwer than the car-
ryirg-amount, e gssel |5 wntten down 1o Lhis lower recoverable amount, For cesh-generating units,
werite-down is gllocated in such o way that goodwill amounts are written down first and then ary remain
ing need for write-down 1= allocated to other assets of the unit, hdiwever, the indwidual assel is not writ-
ben down bo an arnoiint Ehist 18 [ower than its falr value net of estimated selling costs.

Impairment losses are recognized In the profit or lo5s, In case of any subsequent reversals of impeirment
losers resulling fram change in assumphions of thi pstimated recoverable value, the carfying Valuss of
the asset and the cash-penerating unit, respectively, are Increased 1o the pdjustéd estimate of the recoy-
erabie value, howevar, no mard than the carrying vblue which the asset or the cash-gensrating wnit
would have had if the write-down had not been performed. Impaiment losses of goodwil] afre not re-
wErREL,

Frofite ar losses froon Lhe sale of peoperty, plant cguipment and Neet e calculatod as the differonce be-
tween selling price less selling costs and cartying value at the fime of sate, Profits o losses are recog-
nized in the statement of comprehensive Income if the selling price differs fram the carrying amount.
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1.20 current assels
Biological assels

Biological assets, which consist of breeding horses, dare measured al fair value if such tan be measured
religbly or otherwise at cost.

Yalue edjustments-are recorded through the statersent of comprehensive income.
Invenlories

Inventories are measured ab cost accarding B0 the FIFOD method, The cost of finished goods and weark in
progress inchudes direct and indirect production costs. [nventonies are written down [o net realizabie val-
wa IF it Is loweer than bhHe cost price

Trade receivables

O initial recopnition, frade receivables argd micasured at fair value and subseguently a1 amdrtized cost,
which Lsually equals nominal amount 1255 bad debt provisions,

Other receivables

Ciher recoivables with 2 fixéed maturity are measored Bt amortized cost, less any, impairmenl,

Prepayments

Frepayments comprise incurted costs retating to subseguent financial years: Propaymonts are melsorcd
at cost.

Sacuritles

Securities cxmprse mortgage and corporate bonds and shares. Al securitics are listed, The securitios anc
measured at fair yalue and wvalue adjustments are recorded through the statement of comprehensive
InCome,

1.21 'Liabilities

Other provigions

Other provisiens arg recognized when the group has a logal or constructive obligation as.a result of past
ayEnis 0 the Tinanced YERF OF prior years, and U probable that gEttlement of such cbfigation will lead ta
an putfles of fmancial rescurces

Lease commitments

Leaze commitments relating to assets held under findnce leases are recognized in the sratement of Mnan-
cinl position as llabilitles wther than provisions, and, &t the time of Incagpthon of the lease, measured at the
Irwer of the leace aseet’s fair valoe and the present value of future lease paymanis, Subssquent to kil
recponition, lease commitments are measurd at amortized cost. The diference hetvweon the prosent
value and neminal amouni of the Iease payments is meoognized in profit or Ioss as a financial expense
aver the ferm of the leases,

Lease payments on operating leases are recognized on a straight-line basls in profit or loss over the term
of the leaso

i,23 Other fnancial Fabilities

On initlad recognition, other kabliites, Including ssued bond loans, bank loans and trade pavebles, are
measured al falr value, Subsequently, these labilities pre mepguréd al amanized cost applying the offoc-
tive interest methiod to the effect that the difference between procesds and naminal emount is recoanized
in profit or 10ss a5 & financial expense over the term of Ehe loan
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Dwn bonds

Own bonds are presented as a redection In ksswed bonds. On initial recoconition, the helding of own bonds
is. measured at fair vafue. Subsequently these bonds are measured at amortized costs,

Penslon abligaticns

The grovp has enbered Inko pensien agreements with certain groups of employess, which are classified as
defined contributicn penskan plans,

Perigdical payments to defined contnbutign pension pleny are recognized i profit or loss when the enm-
plovess have rendered service to the group, and any contributlons payable are recognized in the state-
ment of inancigl position under labilities,

Statement of cash flows

Theee group™s Stalement of cash Mows ie presented using the indirect method and shows cash Moese from
operating, Investing and financing activities as well &5 the group’s cash ard cash sguivalents ot the be-
gifining and end of the financlal year.

Cash Nows from operaling activities are calulated as EBIT agjusted for non-cash operating ilerms, work:
ing capital changes and income taxes paid. In the adjustment for non-cash eperating items, depreciations
and amortizations capitalized on tanglble and Iintangible assets ang Includad.

Cash fews from investing activities compnee payments in connection with the acgeisition and divestment
of enterprises, tangible fixed asset investments, and purchase, development, improvement snd sale, etc
ol Intanglble assets, and property, plant equipment and fleel. Depreclation dnd amortization capitalized
an Yangible and intangible assets are included In cash fow from investing activitkes,

1r any, cash Nows from acquired and divested enterprises are shown az separate line lkems within cash
flows from Investing activities, Cash flows refated to acguired enterprsss &re recaognized n the stitemant
of cash Maw fram helr date of acauisition, and cash flows from divested enterprises are recognized up Lo
the date of =ale.

Cash Naws from Anancing activitkes comprise Mnancipl expenscs pait amnd changes in the see or compos)-
tion of the parent company's Share caplial and related coste, the reising of loans, Installmeants on inber
eat-bearing delsl, puréhase of own shoares, and payment of dividends

Cieh and cash sguivalents comprise cach,
2.  Use of critical accounting estimates and judgments

The graug propares its consolidatod financizl statemeonts in atcordance with IFRS a5 adopted by 1he ELU,
the application of which often reqiiires judaments to be made by Management when preparing the
proup's financial position and results. Under IFRS, Management 15 required (o adopt those aocounting
policles most approprizie to the group’s circumstences for Uhe purpose of presenting faitly the group™s
financial pesition, Nnanoal performence and cash flaws

In determlning and spplying accauntisg polses, judogment Is ahten renured i respeet of ilems whene the
choice of specilic policy, acoounting estimate or assumplion to be followed could materially affect the
sepoied resubts or net asset position of the group; 0 may fater be determined that & dilferent choice
would have been more approposte. Aoiual resilts may differ from Lhe accouniting estimates,

Estimatos and assumptions-are Toviewed on an ongoing basis and have been proparod taking the markot
situation intd consideralion, butstill ensuring that one-olf effects which are not expected tooexist in the
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long term do not affect estimation and determination of these key factors, including discount rates and
cxpectations aoaut e futune.

Management considers that certaln accounting estimates and asaumptions relating to assets, liakilities
and expenses are ks Critical accounting estimates and judgment:

A discussion of these critical accpunting estimates and judgments are provided below and should be read
I conjunciion with the disclosure of the group’s significant IFRS accounting policies provided in nate 1 1o
the consolbdated financial staterments.

2.1 Capitalization of ool fieai

The group's activity = to provide semvices refated Lo inferventlon service and cormpietian splutions to the
oil and gas indizstry, using tools developed and produced by Wellbec, The fools are used commercially in
micre than one accounting peried, and are thus considered tangibie assets and not indentories.

Costs directly attributable to bunging the toofs 1o the condition hetessary for them o be capable of oper-
ating in the manner intended by Management are capitalized as part of the costs of plant equipment and
Meet. Costs dircetly related to performing commercial services with the tools are expensed 85 Ehey oecir

Costs of the tools include some variable indirect costs of bringing the tools (o theie wiorking condition that
can be allocated fo the toels on & systematic and reasonable basie (e.g. ront, electrlcity and laboring
costs).

At December 31, 3017, Welltec has capitalized USD 74,930 thousand as plant equipment and fieel -
completed and under construction compared to USD BR, 382 theusand & Decomber 31, 2016, Plant
efuipmeant and fieel is depreciated over thelr Useful Hves, Plant equipment sver 3-10 vears and feel over
L wears.

2.2 Capllalizatien of development profects

fn intermally generated intangible asset arising froom develspment s recognized IT, and only iF. all of the
criteria in [AS 38 have been mel. Development costs nol meebng these crlens are expensed as nourred,

Cevelopmenl costs recognized as self-constructed intangible assets comprise ail directly altributable
COSEE necessary Lo create apd propare 1he assel to be caphbio of cperaling in tho manner intonded by
Management. Such costs include costs of matenals and services used In producing protetypes, salaries,
lzes to register legal rights as well as cosls of feld testing the developed tool,

The grtip enly engages in development activities aimed &t developlng new or improved toeoks for usein
providing services o the oll and oas indusiry, and has no intenbion of selling developed technoloay, P
fighls ike

The group does not initigte @ development project uniess & specfic need within the oil and oas industry
has been identified or anticlpated, and consequently that o can be demonstrated how the intangible assat
will gpenerate probahble future economic benglits

It 15 the opinion of Management thot due to a short and market-onented development process, develop:
ment coste wodld normally be capltatized,

AL December 31, 2007, Welltes has capitolized USD 49,825 thousands as development. projects -
completed and in progress - compared to USD 66, A8 thousand at December 31, 2016, Completed
development projects sre amortized over their useful |ives of usually 5 vears.
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2.3 Impairment test of goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill represents USD 242,340 thoesand eguatizing 47% of tolal assets and 146% of total equity at
December 31, 2016, which is significant. to the consadidated financial statements.

For purposes of assessing the carmying amount of goodwill and other infangible ssseks of USD 327 122
thousand ol December 31, 2017 compared to USH 342 41% thousand at December 31, 016, Mansge-
ment prepared it= annual Impairment test

in performing the impalrment test, Management makés an assessment of whether the group will be able
to generate posilive net cash flows sufficient to support the value of the goodwill, Intangible assets and
ather net assets of the entity, This assessment = based on estimates of expected future cash flows (val-
ve=n-usa) made an the basls of financial bedoets and fong-termy forecasts untll the and of 2022, In addi-
flon bo these, the key assumpbons used to estimale expected fulure cash flows are discount rates and
groavth rates. Im 2005, the sudden declineg I il prices has left the induitry under pressue to redoce
spending which genecally has ipcressed the estimation uncerainty and reduced the market value of
Weliter,

The measurement of goodwill may be significantly impacted by changes in the estimates made whean
calcutating the value-in-use of the entity In connection with impairment fest

For @ further description of goodwill, the cash-gengrating unit; the impairment test and relsted key as-
sumptions (being expectations about future: earnings, growth rate and discount rate), refer to note 11,

3. Siaff costs

[USEH thousamds ) 2017 2018 2015

Brepkdown of staff cosis:

T e A BT o T e wimwwmn o b i 140 L] L] 1 b 59,102 &%, 736 41,203

Share-basad PayrmBIE (o s i i e e e et s e B,GEA 434 L5

Payments [o gefined contrbution pension plans ..o 1,978 2213 3,057

Dthee cocial securlty eosbe, . L 3,581 3,482 4,940
ToORR] BRI OB o ovihibisbmwn v in ks snin s snunn ok bk i nni e kaa b ph B1. 286 75.B65 98,745

Recogmition of =taff costs:

Cost oF sorvlcas fravhaid. . i i e e e 40,356 30,005 53,147
Development and manufacturing costscapitalized . Q782 10,085 12,633
Adrministrative costs oo e e e e s b e e 31,648 26,775 =2 505
D T o o oo i i e i s o B i 81,286 75,865 98, 745

Mumber of employaes:
Avtirage AUMBET 6F BMPIEYEEE | s FEF. J3a Ba7

A.1 DPefined cantribution plans

The group operates pension schemes that cover ceraln groups of Employees in Denmark and abroad.
Thise pension sehemes tnke the Torm of defined contribution plase, The group arenges for the reguiar
payment (2.9 a fiked amolnt of & fiked porcentage of the salary ) of premiams {0 indépendent msurers
who are iesponsitle for the penslon commibments. Ooce the group Bas made payments of (he contribe-
tion under the defined contribistion pension plans, 1he group has no further pension commitments related
Lo employees or former employess,



FH HOLDING, ALLEROD, APS ANNUAL REPORT 2017 39

3.1 Remuneration to members of the Executive Bosard, Board of Directors and other key
management persennel

The total remuneration of the Executive Board and Board of Diractors, including banus, pension, other
social security costs s share-based payments, can be specified as followes:

{USD in thousands) 2017 2016 2015
Shor-term skaff BEMETItE . ... v i vivvis it iy em v v nswnes EEEeRr PSSR BLG &91 P
Y T TIPS A R B5 b6 74
Share<based PaymBniEE . oo bi i il 1 L 582 1] 1]
B L L= L7 g L o e N PP P L S 1,506 rir) 262

Thie tetel remuneration of the key manapement personnel of the group, including bohus, pension, other
social secunty cosis and share-based payments, can be specilied as follows:

{USDin [Housands) 2017 16 2015
SO DA T -SERIT BERBTIN oo e e s by e LA VS e T 1,356 2,72 3,547
Pention benefits ..o, AT TP e v, HE 31 121
Share-bss PRYMBEEE o orrea prerrsss s e snns st b ng s bt i bsnnts 442 1 f
Tothl remuUneration . ... ceerrmmrsmnermneeranrererinsssnsss s sssssssynssrans 1,884 2,880 3 G668

3.3 Incentive programs

The group operates incentlve schemes in the form of warrants (eguity-ssfiked) to the Board of Directars
of Welltee Interrational ApS, the Executive Board ol Welltec &)5; certain senior executives (YPS) and
pther key personmel in the Welltec group. The purpose = booretaln and mativabe the said persons, The
schiemes arg hased on (ha shares of Wellte: Tnlermational ApS, and the warrants haye no vating rights
attached

In 3006, Welltec Holding ApS Issued 105 820 warrants to senior executives. (VPs) in the Welltec group.
The warrants vested over an amployment period wntil 2009. 1 employment ceased belore a wairant =
vested, the warrant would be reduced proportionally. The warrant schem is exercrsable not earlier than
o yoar (for warrants that vest first), and not later than nine years, after the grant dste

I 20407, Welltec International ApS took ever from Wellbec Holding ApS 185,300 warrants issued to the
Executive Board of Welltec &/5 and senior executives [VP=) in the Wellteo group, This dumber of warrants
wais converted to 400,058 warrants In Wellbec Inbernstional ApS and (he exercise price Was adjusted ac-
cardingly.

In 2009, & new warrant scheme bo key manaoemen! personnsl was gramted. The warmant scheme con-
slsts of 68,000 warrants vested over an employment period unbil 2012, The warrants are exercisgble no
eartier than three years and notleter than six years after the grant date. The total fair value of these
el raibs was a1 grant dale USE0 229 theusand of which USD 115 thoosand was recognized In the siafe-
ment of comprehensivé Income In 2009, USD 84 thousand In 2010 and USD 30 thousand in 2011, The
sued warrants were axcrcised n 201%

In Movembor 201 1, new warrant schemes 1o the Board of Directors, the Executive Board of Welltee group
and key mansgerment personnel were granted, The warmant schemes comsist of 290, 850 warrants of



JH HOLDING, ALLERDD, APS ANNUAL REPORT 2017 40

which 50,000 warrants did not have any vesling conditions, and the remaining warrants vest Bver gn
empioyment period betweon one and four vears untll the end of 2014, The total fair value of these war-
rants was ot grant date USD 8.5 mililon of which USD 5.9 millisn was recognized in the siatement of
comprehensive income in 2011, UsD 2.3 million was recognized In the statement of comprehensive i
come in 2012 and USE 0.3 million in 2013, The fair value of the warrant schemes at grant date was cal-
culated on the basis of the Black-Scholes model. The calculation for the 2011 schemes is based on an
expected volalility of 33%, a risk-free Inberest rate at 0.85%, a share price of USD 143 before deducting
an estimated lguidity discount, the exercise price; an average apbion life of 60 months and no anneal
payment of dividends, The ¢xpected votolility has beer determined using a histoncsl volatility for a five-
year pericd for comparable listed compenies adjusted for & small-cap factor.

In Sapkember 20013, worrant schemes to key management personnel wire granted. The warrant schemes
conzist of 50,800 warrants and vest over an employment penod betvwecn one and four years until the
end of 2017, The total fair value of these warrants was at grant date USD-3.7 mullion of which USD 2.4
million was recognlzed in the statement of comprehensive incame in 2013, USP (&3] thousand was rec-
pgnied in the statement of comprehensive income in 2014, and USD (677) thousand was recognized

in the statement of the comprehansive income In 2015, The negative amount s due o canceliation of
warrant on-emploeyees leaving the group resulting in costs from earliar pericds being reversed, The fair
wvalue of the warrant schemes at grant date was calcutated on the bagie of the Black-Scholes model. The
caleulation for the 2013 schernes is based on an expected vedatiiiby of 455, a risk-free interest rate at
0.01%, a share price ol LIS 174304, the sxerclse price, &N average np-‘.l.ﬂh.llrh al 36 manths and no
annual mayment of dividends, The oxpected vilatility has boon dietermined using a historicpl volatiity for
a five=year pericd for comparable isted companies adjustied for a small-cap factor.

In Cecember 2014, warrant schemes to key managemenl personnel were granted. The warrant schemes
consist of 42,300 warrants and vest over an employment petiod between one and four yoarsuntil the
end of 2017, The total falr valoe: of Lhese warrants was al grant date USD 5.4 million of which USH 20
thowsand was recognized i the statement of comprehensive income in 2014 and USD 1,187 thousand
Wwas recognized in the statement of the comprehensive mcome in 2015, The fair value of the warrant
schemes al grant date was calculated on the basis of the Black-Scheles mpdel. The calculation far the
2014 schemes is based on &n éxpectad volatility of 5%, a risk-frée interest rate st 0.14%, a share price
ol USD 294, the sderclsa price, an avardge option life of 36 months ard no annual payvment of dividends
The gxpected volatiiy has been determingd using a historical volatility for-a five-year perod for comps-
rable lsled companies adjusted for a emall-cap factor

In May 2017, warrants schemes to The Exgcutive Board of Wellteo A/5 and certain key management
persennel was granted. The warranl schemes consist of 232,438 warranis-and vast over an employment
peried bebween ont and four years until the end of 2007, This totel Tair value of these warrants was at
grant date USD 9.9 millpn of which USD 5.9 miflan was recognized in the statoment of comprehensive
lmcome in 2017, The fair valize of the warrants schemies at afant date was Calculatled on thebasis of the
Bleck -Scholes model, The ealculption for the 2017 schomes is based on an expected volalliity of 49%, a
rsk-free interest rate at (0.33)}%%, a share price-of U0 94, the exercise price, an &verage opbon fife of
4% manth and no aniual payment of dividends, The expected valatility has boon determined using a
historical volatitity for a five-year pericd for comparable listed companies adjusted for a small-cap Tactor,

in the event of an [FD or certain chanpae n the ownership structure {e.g. Heting or sate of the company),
all warrants will vest and become exprcisable.

A5 @ result of the dividend distribution in 2012, the exerdise proes of outstanding warrainl schemes Trom
2011 and beforo Wwore adiusted n 2012 bo avord a difution of the fair valuos of these warrants, The now
exertise prices were adjusted to ensure [hat the fair values beforé and after the dvidend pay-oul were
the sama. Therefore these adjustments had no effect on the consolidated financlal stetements in 2013,
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The fallewing schemes were 11 &xistence during the curment and prior year:

Grant date Vesting date Explry date

Warrant gcheme  Mumber !

Grranted in J00 T Feb. 2046
Granted n 2o BB DD SEp. 2009
Granled 1h 2011 290850 Mov, 200
Grafrted in 2013 L, B0 Seq. 2013
Granges m #0314 42 500 Dec 2014
Granied i 2017 238,438 May 2087/

2007 - 200
2010-2012
20812014

20E3-2017

A01d-Fn ¢

2017

June 2006
Sep. 2015
Moy, 016
Jumi, 2000

Bec 2020-
De, 2001

Jun. 2121

Exercize

price per
warrant

usp 23

015
33
147

136241

#43-255

dule=

Falbr
valuepar
warrant at  Ouistanding
grant date at
usp F1.12.2017
.9 il
3.7 0
8.7 a
44103 2,200
175-130 11, G
26499 273338
449,738

1 The niembers o thie 2005 and 2006 grant are after the convession o warranls on shares In Wellkec International

ApS.

“ The passtefss orices gre sdjusted for tlee diliting impact from dividend pad o 2012,
" Tho eeercise prices ane oontacied in DEKE and transialed above into WS pesed on e year-ond rate,

The following reconciles the warrants oytstanding at the beginhing and at the end of the year:

Bogrd of Seniar
Biractors of execufives Welghted
Wailtec Exzcutive mind key aveErage
Internationsl Bosrd of management EEEFCISE
ApSE  Welliec A/S perionne] Total  price USD !
Balance at 3 122015 10,000 a0, 000 519,463 5704961 104
Cranked 1] ] GE D00 ) (&E,000) 35
Forfelied o i fanan0h {44, B0 154
Balance al 31127015 10,000 50,000 q16, 561 AV 567 B{
Exgreiced 1} ¥} L1028/ (102, 474] 3
Forfeiled {10,000 {50,000 CEah BETY {316,867 el
Bakance st 3 17 2016 0 0 51 400 53,900 FFa
GrEnled 1] 131,608 18683 ¢ F35,450 a3
FiaTeled ] 0 {22900} {32,900) b
Balance at 31,1270 o 131 6405 148,137 e I rE
Thete warranis are exercisabla
al 30472201 7 26,400 Fh,400

P The exerome prices in 20013 are adpmies for e daution impect from @ivigend pald in 2002

The werghted average remaining contractual life and range of exerclse price of cutstanding warrants was
29 months and & price of USD 0 16-755 (adjusted for dilutioh impact) st December 31, 2017, 37 months
and a price of USD 141-235 (adjusted for dilution impact) &t December 31, 2006, and 10 months and &

price of USD 0,15-264 (adjusied Tor dilution impac) a1 December 31, 2015,
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Weighted averagg

Mumbar share price at

Warranl scheme exeicised Exercise date wxercise date USD
Granted in 20i& P74, 331 War, 2012 143
Grantad in 2006 a7 Aug, 2009 143
Granted in 2004 ek Do, 2012 14l
Granted in 3008 GE.O00 Jul. 215 lda
Gripnbed in 321 G300 Dac. 2012 143

The botal expenss récaghiiged in the statement of comprehensive income for all warrant echemes
amaunied o USD 6,614 thousand for 2017, The todal expense recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income far all warrant schemes amounted to USD 434 thousand in 2016 and ()5S0 505
thousand in 2015,
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4., Amortization, depreciation and Impalrment losses

{USD (hbussnds) 2017 2016 2015
Completnd devedopment ProdBrts f o sness asant bass b ia immsios 15,617 21557 24 068
Pabents and lioenees . SR EERE R 913 RE7 £1E
Crs el TR R O M B e et et F et 194 8mnd | smemn | | frinns i o 1,66 5 455
TEEMMEHOT e vri e L L asy 1,367 4,500
Total amortization of Inl'.an-,glbre 12 (PR S ——— 20,021 26,880 35,848
Cilher (xiwres and fillings, 1ools and sqepmeant, . L 2. 400 3 981 4108
Land and Bl E o ool ey 757 200 45
Planl eqielpmenl Sne TIEeE, . ooy imamsrsse s s YT 36 505 37,718 28 361
LT L T LT 351 E36: 735
Gaindoss Irom dispgsad of plant aquipment ard Maet o ; (2143 (21} (711
Total dopreciation of BENgIHle BESBE .o eiimesmansiciisisiissisns 29 769 23,013 54,770
Total depreclation and amortizatieon....... 49,820 59,893 70.627
Impairment lossaes
Write-gaan oo duun;e'inprrmnl prbjecis 7,552 2198 160
WFibe-dawn 06 technolody. . sriadaiiaaa L s wadai ks b pad s b 313 47,462
WeilE-down an tusisdnar relslionship 0 #.398 a
Write-down an Paledss Bl hoenses an n a
Wrile-down on planl eguipresent and feet it | R i 4812 2,564 1968
Total Ipalrmenl IOSSas, .. oo s s sy s sy o 12,776 58 640 2,128
Recognltion af amortizstion, depreciation and
impairment by function
Cotl of gprvices provided, i bbb bl dad dE LRI L B TESLEEL ST 43,559 b4, B4 55,30
Orveiapment and manufacturing costs: CApEBEREN b o 1,012 w7 a8
Adminisirol e and sales cosis ; 7476 8,734 660
Amiorizaten of soguired IntEngible assels in b busieds
L TR o o s oy 14 b P 5 i 6 e PR e e e oL S50 55 168 16,364
Total amortization, ﬂlPl'lﬂ.-T-iﬂﬂl and impairment 05588 o ‘62,507 118 K553 72,755
5. Special tems
(USD thousands) 2017 2016 2015
Compensation to PEA for seling certain nghts B RS R b 38,733 i} 1]
Salary cost related to restgnesd employees and: =p::cla~1 BONES v s 2267 1,438 7,451
Cost related 1o termination of rental agreements eto 135 0 1,000
Chher gpocial ltems 1,817 EfS5 0
TORE] SPEETBE DERTYEE uicoinriinsorssinns i beinnamnnhos basssia s sim s adeadach b mdebs 8 b 282S 42953 4,353 B 500

Speclal iternsin 2017 are primarly related to-compensation t& PRA for selling certzin righis and costs
incurred adjusting the busness 1o changed market conditions, The costs are incurred in a4 Tunctions of
the business which are mainly recorded within *Cost of service provided” and “administrative and sales

Costs”,
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B. Financial income

{USD thousands) 2017 2016 2015
TPRBBHE [YCOMTIR | o grbime s nh s s s b 4 b bt b e it 735 1,129
Interast income from financial assets that are not measured at

falr value through profit or loss 7o 735 1,129
Fair wale adjustment of derivative financial instruments oo k a 4118
Exchange rate Galng: ..o i et Lk B 15,295 14,211 3¢ 280
T“‘F 'lnnnﬁ.l I“mme PR pEERspmadbpadabmadrpradrprddbrerrresrrat e TrEEa i ERYl PR TR R R 15 s 1."Eﬂﬁ .-2.53?
7.  Financial expenses

[USD thousands) 2017 2016 2015
e o RN o e e T s e H e (26267 {(£7.396) (27.973)
Qther financial @Xpenses . . i, e L e e 2 (8,982} {3,125) {3,296)
Interest expensas from financial llabllities that sre not

measured at fair value throwugh profit or eSS . (3%,249) (30;521) (31,269)
EXCRANDE TATR JBEBRE | yeeinrerrsi irrsi simas vt et i vosd | ki S i o b S (23,431} [13.876) ([30.714)
Fair value adjustment of derivative financlal mstroments 0 1] £ L3991
Total fiNANCIA] BXPONERE.. ot ssseensss _(SE680] [44,307] [74,874)

Borrowing costs capilalized on development projedts are cafculated based on the incurred oosts and &
weghted average capitelization rate of 9% (7.0% in 2016}, The amount capilalized in 2017 = USH 552

thousand [UST 350 thousand in 2016 and USD 410 thousand in 2015].

The not profil impact at-group evel of dervative financial instruments measured st falr valieo through

prodit or lass amoufited o a gain of Ush 0 thousand at December 31, 2017 {a net gain af USD 0
thowsand (0 2016 and USE 127 thousand m 2085]),

The nel exchnge rale loss ol Decgmber 31, F017, was WSDE170 fhousand (a net exchange rale gain of

USD 335 thousand in 2016 and a net exchange rate lass of UWSD 2,434 thousand in 2015],
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B. Income taxes

(LS thousands) 2017 2016 2015
T o1 s N e P e T S T r AT 2,011 4 172 12,781
Adjustment in corporation a2 previous ¥2ars e s {1.213) {1,434 ]
Current tax incl. ad). in corporation tax previous years.......... 798 2,738 12,775
Adfustrent in defarred Lok preEvioLs PEAMS . ..oooreb o e et =1} 1,324 {219)
Changl 1 deferren tE%. o e R o R SRR (16,792} [18,524) 655
Effect from change in lax rate, deferred Ban. oo i i [ SHI) g 397
Taoe EiTe et Froumy, Lo POV BT i b s whdaaiynn i aie o s e iadi-bbas 1 4oih focac G509 [B02)  (2,750)
Other taxes oo T e e N o R e R o A S H &Y 3800 810

T TR s i 7 i i e R F I R S B (6,007} {1 1,454) 14,668

A breskdown of tax:
PR Tl e T e e 111,873 B1.452 19181

Reconciliation of tax rate USD (%)

Danish corporation Lax rakbe . i i e aa e TR 220 2E0 23.5
Effect of éxchange rale adustment in USD and DEE on Da nrsh

TN I o i I o B R AR 4 i (&}
Elfect of difference Debween the rate for subsidiaries gubside Denmark
Bnd Danish mEhE o e s e 1 1] (10}
Tax effect frarm Lk provision .o e, b It Bt bbb e B b b b B 1 1 14
Hon-tazable income and non- deducrlhle EXQENSES, . SR b Cidrad {12} [ d (37
Pntereil lhimitation, Ehin capitallzation BEC. ..o iisiiaar s (1) {3} 128)
Withihalding taxes, nor-deductibbe .o ) ) {20
Change In corporale income tax rabe, current and coming years........... ] o [y
Other taxes, including adjustment (o PIEVIOUS YEBIS ivvaiireiiiierireriesrriass 1] b {2)

5 14 [77)

Im 2013, Management decded to change the presentation currency of = consalidated financial
statements to USSR, however, taéz returns for the Danish companies are still submitted in DEE with
pumbers based an consalidation (n DEX

Effect of cxchange rote adjustment in USD and DKE on Dansh corporation tax (5 caused by the
gxchange rate adjustrments betwesn USD and DKK in the WSO account.

Mo income tax hos been recognized in other comprehensive income in 2017, In 2017 USD O thousand
(2016 USD 1,689 thousand, 2015 USD 52 thousand] was recogrized directly in equity related to tax
Eredit arising upen exercise of warmants,

Denmark - credit for texes paid abromed

The Danish Lax aulbionibes have in 2014 ksued tax assecsment notices Tor the linancial years 2009 15
2011 following the asscesment made rogarding 1he financal year 2008, The now assessments ad|ust |Fe
Lax payvable due to ben-recognibicn of credit relief cakoulated an withhalding taxes pald abroal. The
additional tax payable has been padd and expensed, The aecisions are appealed 1o the MNational Tax
Tribwirsal,
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The tax credit catculations for the financial years 2013 1o 2016 and the preliminary Lak calculation for
2007 have been made up based on simifar prinoples as applied by the Danish tax suthonties far
PrevIoUs years.

9. Non-cash adjustments

[LUSD thousands) 2017 2016 2015
Fabr value adjustments of assets 3,885  {2,9249) f1,199)
Depreciation of intangible and tangibie assets, .0 R BIERS Bl ey 53,074 Lo Bg3 70,153
Disposels and Wrike-dommns. e el e o B,999 EE,640 2113
Exchange rate adjustment on depreciaticn and fised a=ssebs. . . {318} (411) 2. 894
Unrealized galns/Iesses on TINanchsl INsrumEmnS o s (4,989} 3,604 (114}
Curroncy adjustmeonis, DEREE .. o0 reirrrmr e rrrs srrs s ete e e s e rons 1] 0 (1312
Write-down on trade recaivableEs ..o L ach kebvmatd Lt i b 104 ] [752)
D e T BT e e (o i 6,614 454 oGS

67,368 119,432 63,288

10. Changes In working capital

(USD thousands) 2017 2016 2015
Change In receivables and prepayMENES. ovrsamsmrssiress e ] [5,970% 16,0706 24 405
Changes in mvenbOriES ... .o sre carr s g s ar e ors ot s m e s [2,478) 256 {1,408)
Change In trade pavabbes ... ... ..o e Lt T A Tk RV Lk T L] o 304 f4,B90) 15,968
Changs in other BEYADIES .. i R e S b [2.577) f&6, 755] (& 260
Chanoe n other recRIVABIES . . st sas ssssa s s s b mr g 488 F i m i a (6. 810)
Change In recévables from affiliates. . - {1,408} (254 0
Chanoe o payalles 1o 8MIEETES . ..o oo recrs srmaresmrsr srsrrr s rma s e rrmmor e 3,069 §1, 7785 (10,056}

(10,058) 1,773 13,843
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11. Intangible assets

Completad CrEwelop-
Gther dovalop- mant F'l!‘.l.hh'.
iitangitls ment  projects in
(UsD thousands) Goodwill assats®  projedtds  progress llm Tatal
Costs 3t 01.01.Z2016 243,340 156,170 178,440 10,826 17,703 05 570
At i 240 (1} ] 3 11,45%
Traiviler 4] ] 140,790 [ i a3
(W posals 0 e yesr 4] ] (E4.327) ¥] L4 {14, 327)
Excrange rate adjustment i {1 0 i th 65
Costs at 31.12.2016 L42.340 156,475 174,971 B850 20,5374 GOE G049
Amortization snd
impeirment losses at
08.01.2016 o B3, 269 105,080 LA IR L] 3,562 197 508
Amuortization for the yea o 2,435 23457 ] HHT kB BBD
Impairmont losses far the
AT B a3 86l 4,196 ] i b 156
Dispaeal i i {14,375 i i (14,327)
Excfiangs rate adjusbment L1 Fy ] {2} 2 B
Amartization and
Impalrment losses at
31.12.20186 o 138,537 116,516 586 4,451 261,190
Carrying value at
31.12.3018 247,340 LB 838 56,455 8313 16,473 3482, 41%
Costs ot 01.01,.2007 242 340 166,475 174,971 B, BS99 20,924 GO, 605
Adiditions i BOG i 8,23g 2842 12,687
Fransfei ] f 5,605 (5,6405%] i LH]
Disgwiaals on e pesr 1] L} {30193 0 ] {309
Eutlunrsoe rate ndjust rosnd i f L] 1] i} i
Costs at 31.12.2017 243,340 157 2684 180,367 12530 43,550 615,987
Amorkzation and
impairment lossos ab
ol.0L.2017 1] 139,637 116,516 S5HE 44571 261,190
Amartaalicn far the year e any tR.617 [ gl1d 20021
IRk kstes for (he
VEET o 312 7ahd fl T} T
s prsil 4] il {304 f ik { AcHer)
Exchange rale sdjustment (i3 0 i i 4] i
Amprtization and
impairment losses af
31.12.2017 o 140,441 123 388 BRE 5452 2R BR5
Crrrying valua &t
31.,12.2017 247 340 16 Ba3 37,8681 11,544 18,114 3XF 132

L Please see specilication balow,
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Dther intangible assets

Custamier
(USD thousanss) Jechnology | _refationshlp Brand Total
Cosks at 01.01.2016 90,310 51,934 13,934 156,170
Sddions 240 0 ] 2403
Exchange rale adjustmsnt o 65 i B3
Costs at 31.12.2016 90,550 52,001 13.924 156475
Amartization and Impalrmant losses at 01.01.2016 8,809 A4, 460 Li] B3I 2090
Amdrtization lor (he yesr 1,367 1,069 i} 2436
Wrile-dawirn lar Lhe yvear 47 467 6,398 i 53 &R0
Exrhange rabe adjusimeni (2 4 o 2
Amortization and impairmant losses at 31.132.2016 87,636 53,001 1] 139 637
Carrying valie gt 31122016 2,814 o 13,924 16,838
Costs at 01.01.2017 90,550 £2,001 13,824 156,475
Additiors 809 1] 1] B
Ewchange mta adprshmens L fl <] 1]
Cosis At 31.12.2017F 91,359 2,001 13,924 157,284
Amortlzation gnd Impairment losses at 01.01.2017F B7,636 52,001 L] 138,637
Amorceation for the pear 453 0 0 any
Write-dlovn lor (e voor 3 i u 312
Exchange rale adustmant L f 0 ]
Amertization and impalrmaent losses 3t 31.12.3017 88,440 L2001 1] 140 441
Carrying value at 31.13.3016 2,919 L] 13,819 16,643

Grodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lite

Goodwill of USD 242,340 thousand is related bto the acquisitlon of Welltec Holding ApS In 2007, and has
been subject to an annual impairment st The impsirment Lest perfarmed in 2007 revealed no need for
impairment of goodwill

Gaodwill has been tested of the aggregated level, The Wellkec International Ap5 Group is considered as
cne cash-generating unit as the acquisition in 2007 related 1o the whale Graup. L s the aglalan of
Management that the carrging amount for goodwill does not exceed its recoverable value based on-an
estimate of present value of expected future net cash fiows from the Welltec International ApS Group
{value-in-use)

The calculation of the value-in-use is based on the following key assumplions; expectations aboul growth
rates, EBITDA ratio and discount rates,

Expoctations are based on financial budget for 2018 and Iongborm forccasts unbil the end of 20232, A
grawth rabe of 2.4% hes been applied in the terminal pedod from 2023 and onwards

The discounk rate appiied i= based on & risk-adjusted sfter bax discount rale [weighted average cost of
capital} of 10.7%. Tre weighted average cost of capital before tax is 11.8%. In 2016 the weightad
avorago cost of capital used was 10.0% which cauais a before b discount rete of 11, 1%,

Impairment test is based on follvwing assamptions and market views,
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Consensus suggests that the averall demand Tor DIl B Gas s expected (o continue to increase 52 & resull
of & growing world economy. The global oversupply of oll gradually diminshed diering | he course of 2007
amid production dedines and reduced Investments. The weakening supply fundamentais coupled with a
resilient demand paved the way for higher ofl prices and mare importantly 8 more stabie oil price
envirenment by the end of 2017, Looking into 201E, market consensus suggest a continued stabilizabon
albeil with risk of increased volability should geopolitical unrest or the OPEC prodiiction coordination yet
again fail, For Welltes, the market potential remains unchanged, as the global demand continues to
increase. In additbon the cursent oil price environment requires the industry 1o adopt new technology that
reduces oot of production and ultimatedy halp operstors Creoate sustainable businesses,

Althounh the prevalling climaie is challenglng for the industry and Wellles with global E&P spend
dramatically reduced, sbove supports that the long term market potential for Wellbee 1s unchanged,

Assumpticns are based on an improved EBITDA ratio based on [he fallowing projecticons;

s Pevenue ingreases due to a markel pick up as described above and a continugusly intreduction of
newe and improved services wher_e Welltec i= able toexpand and gain market shares., This is
expecied bo result in notatle revenue growth in 2018 falling to single digit growth Fate in the
poriod 2019-2022.

s [IPEX will be maintained st same absodule level due Lo improved processes and Better utilization
of the current setup.

Sensitivity analysis on the revenue ardwth and EBITOA ratio have been performed to assess the
probability thal any likely change in cash fiow or discount rate wiil result in &0 impairment loss, The
sensitivity of the revenue growth and EBITDA ratio indicates that revenue growth and EBITDA ratio in the
forecast period from 2018 - 2022 can decrease with up to 3% and 2% respectively, before a write-down
will have to be recognized

Impairment of other intangible assets

Impairment of development projects amaunted 1o USD 7.6 milllon (2016 USD 2.2 millien), which has
bz recognieed in the statement of comprebeonsive income under "cost of Services provided™ as the
projects are closed, The recoverabie amiount was calculated on the bask of Management's re-assessad
estimate of the valug i e of the assets.



12, Tangible assets

(LSD In fhousancs)

Costs al 01,01.2018
Aot homeE,

Transler

Exchange role adjustmen
D possl

Cosis at 31.12.3016

Depreciation and impelrment
losses at 01.01.2016
Deprisctatcn [ [he year

Werite down for the yem

Exchanpe rale adjusimenl
Digposal

Depreciation and Impairment
losces al 31.12.2016

Carrying vajue al 31.12.2016
Hergol held under fimance lease

Costs at 01.01.2017
faoditions

Transles

Exchanoe rate ad ustimient
Dispesal

Costs at 31.12.3017

Dapreciation and mpairmant
losses at 01.031. 2017
Deprecition for the yesi
Write-diown for the yagr
Exshange rate mijastmant
Dispodal

Depreciation and mpairment
lpEses ot 31.12.2017

Carrying valus ot 31.13.3017
Hedenf hiald under financs Ipaoe

Land and
Buildings

22,278
151

1]

{282}
[543
731,063

Xz
400
130

{40}
(%)

3,004

19,078
1363

22,083
123

i

1u17
{170)
13,553

3,004
757
7,638
A4
(112}

&,691

16,862
752
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Leasghold
Improwve-
rrint

6,336
=

1]

K|

]
6,516

4,315
26

53

5011

1,507

i&,318
133

]

Sd

8
6,68

5.013
A61

f]

51

]

5413

1,285

Plant
equipment

Bt Mot

25T
L850
11,6431
i
(1,199)
264,160

60 418
4418
584
41
(1,179

108 582

65,578

264,160
1476
13,65
23
(72,041}
461,413

198,582
26,504
7,174
0
{22,041}

205,235

56,174
5,103

Other
Fiztures,
fittings,
tools mnd

ehuipmaont

27 46D
ADE

(L)

G976
(53]
28,401

[ .83l
3,081
i

G0
{#E4)

23,238

5,163
3,831

28,401
1,956
o

1,462
(5,520
15,898

#3,738
2,401
]

b deh
{4,644

13,123

3,770

Plank
equipmant
and fleet
under con-

gkruckinn

19,817
15408
(32,433}
|7

22,604

8 ocoooo

22,804
]

27,504

13,714
(¥ F55)
I3

i)
18,750

o0 DD

18,756

Impairment losses in 2016 and In F0L5 aie related 1o sciapped (ools, tools lost in the wells and

bmparment tests of the tool lleet and Tand and building,

Total

25,018
19,822
(8337
BS54
{1,79%)
343,866

154,786
33,034
2,714
O5d
[1.653)

214,835

114,131
11,787

313,566
17,301

i}

e
R
336,319

229,835
4ih,013
4,817
4,603
(36,767

230 466

96,853
11,855




13. Biological assels

(USD thousands ;

Cosis at 01.01. 3086
Addibions

Disposals

Edchange e adfustment
Cosis at 31.13. 2016

Vakue adjustment ot 01.01.2016
Value adjustment lor the yedr
Exchange rete adjustmeant

Value adjestment st 31.12.30146

Corrying value Bl 31.12.2016

Costs at 01.031.20017
Additgns

Gispozals

Exilangs: rate adjostmei
Costs gl 31.312.3017F

Value adjustment at 01.01.7017
Vi adiustment 1o the ves
Exclignge rale adjustment

Vaive adjustment al 31.12.2017

Larrying value at 31.12.2017

Biclogical asiets consisl of breeting borses

14. Inwventories

(IS0 thovsants)

Faw materials.... .
Finshed goods.., ...

Total iInventories i e sassas
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18,459
2,592
(1,511%
{655}

19,725

1,181
3,059
LG

23, 705

19,7315
1,588
{728)
4,09

23 3324

4,064
{3,5904)
g3

E; 243

24,568

15. Trade recalvables

(USD thousands)

Trade recoivabics before aiowance for doubtful pocounts ...
Wrile-diswns .., o e o -

Total

2017 2016

.............. 6,397 3,680
i 3032 543
6,699 4,223
__aa7 2016

53,584 49,563

- . (367} (263}
53,217 __ 49,300

Trade recoivables — average figed fime of cedi {davs) ... T e g a3
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Development in wrile-downs of trade receivables

Wrkp-downs a8k DLDL st bttt s senantss et fesaass b ih bt son el L S EE B [263) (263)
BEversed, URreEBllE e WTEECDONG & o s s o i i s i b o 1 207 0
Armeouirsts written off during the year a5 UncollEEtiFE ..o s oercnn s (11} 35
T et T P S O e e i L el i {3001 {35}
W e O B L L i s i i e i s i b i i i i i 6 i £ £ R {367) (263)
Specification of trade receivabiles by due date

T i B B e s ey P e L B L R s 49,479 32835
T I b b s T R b BT B e ] 4,753 5,445
P 3,544 3,796
BO-20 days. ... e e R e A R P T i - 1,372 1 525
B-120 BEVS . . LR S ey TP Tt T eI TS APV P RN PL S L PFTI 2,165 1,861
e N e s L e b bl L 2 0BR3 1,H38
Total trade receivables . e ekl ‘ 53,216 45 300

In 2017, the write-downs on recelvables of USD 367 thousand are all related to trade receivatles due
more than 120+ days, [2016: USD 263 thousand).

Credit rish managemant

Thie aronip s credil fisk on Nauin fusds and derivative financial instruments i limted becauis Lhe courn-
terparties are banks with high credit retings assigned by the internationat credit-rating agencies.

The group's Serviced are provided 1o s variety of contractual counterparties and are therefore subject to
thea risk of non payment for services or non-reimbursement of costs. Becelvables consist of a relatively
small number of costomers, bul the customers:are large corporations-in the oil industry, Companies with
high credit ratings and the group’s loss on trade receivahles are historically immatenal, There Is an ongo-
ing centralized fallow-up on outstanding trade receivables in accordance with the goup's dunning proce-
dures, IFthere Is uncertainty of & costomer's abllity &r will ta pay, and I Mamagemenl assesses that the
recedvables are doubthel, the receivabies will be writien down o lower net realizable value,

The maximum credit nisk related to financiad assets corresponds to the carfving amaunt. Ih casss whare
there may be a risk-of nss, & write-dewn will e made besed on individiesl pssessmant.

16, Prepayments

{USD thousands) 2017 2016
Prepakd imSUFENGE s o T e ] T Pl 1 Pafad Totabrl 5t (TR T | 3e7 31
TP TR DY 4 oo s i 4 R e A b i e b PR ATECE B e R 205 1562
R BT b Fr T TS B SN TR P T T A e s v o 304 JE3
Prepald creditors e il A o UL L E LT B LR R L 2,518 1,621
OEHEE PrEEERITIEIEE .. e osrseensearsomesosss s smmmsns s nsrreas s man s e 1 o s e s rremreen 1 468 757

5381 3141
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17. Share capital

The share capital consists of SO0, 000 ynits at DRE 1/US0 017,

(USD thousands ) GROUP

307 2016

BERARE LAV LLLUINL b bt dboe s & o Bt er s s P rer oy v p s e e e vy o S RE BE
e T o e e b B 4t i o e e {1 0
Exchange rafe adjustment.. ... o a  aaa 4] E
B T A L S S 88 B8

Mo dividernd was pald out in 2017 or 2006 and no dividend is proposed related to the financial year 2017,

In November 2012, the share capibal was divided into the Tollowing four dlasscs of enuity Instriments:

Voting rights per share in

Share Classes amount of DKK 1 Share capltal in DKK
KRR N s ik s s i e e e 10 20,000
IS B i s H i R T PR e 1 30,000
[ | g e A T A At ey T L e S E P e 0 a5 aag
TOUBL sasssssnaannsannns sai bad - 500,000

Class & and B shareholdeis have certain rights (o preference dividends belore dividends are distributed o
ather shate classes,

In 2017, Welttec International ApS pralonged 71,601 warrants previously issued to Jorgen Hallundbatk as
awrner, which sre now exercisable in 2021, Ferthormaore, Welltec Intermational ApS ssued additional
50,000 warrants in 2007 ta Jergen Hallundbask, which are #lss exercisable in 2021, The total fair value

af wearrants-at incepticon was USD 2,100,
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18. Deferred tax assets and llabilities

{USD thousands)

Deferred A 0100 .o iasrrssr nmsreas L
EXChangs rats SuJUSTMENEE itk bbrrrrerrrrsttrrrrrrridbremmsssbei vy kel s mprrrresssreee
Adjustiment in deferred tax previOms Yoars i BRI R
Chanoe in deferred B for thl BEF oo s s s s s b s i
Effect of change in Income tax rate; CUTTENE YEET o s resas i s s s oaresssns
Effect of change in income Lax rake, COming YBars i msmmssmimiiiimssinsimmress
Deferred Lax assels (=) abilities 3112 v S .

Deterred tax breakdown )

T G T T v s s s a it Vi ama d  kcr L
R N e e e i L T L PR .
Corment and nen=ourrent [BEOHITREE vovi i i iawariom i) e iveds s bessasss ms sk bios) fod jias
T T IR i il e b e b S AT b b b B S P B

Change In Eay rate, COMENG YEBES 1 owrwmymenr e oms s ssss e i eespons
Tax contingencies.. ... oo, SRR | Rt T T igazi e e A e e e
- B LT g BT T R A i A S 8 RS oo
Deferred tax assets (-] /lobilithes 3132, . oiiiiiiaiion. i e

Deferred tax |8 recognized In the statement of financial position with:
Delerred Lk 5508 ., R -
B g R e T e N D CUSL Iy Sy LU,

Deferred tax assets{-)/llabilities 331.12

2017 2016
23,703 43,855
3,449 2,161
1,080 1,324
(15,887) (19,325
{91) g

o 0
12373 23,703
29.671 25,250
[17,406) 679
BHi (320)

0 [{=}3)]

a o

1] 0

(&74) (1 E15])

13,373 23 703

{2,583) (2, 106)
14 856 25 509
13,273 23,703

The group does not recognize deferred tax astets that are unlikely 1o be realized or otherwise exposed Lo
major flskor uncertalnty. The tax value of the tax asset not capitalized has been estimated at December

A1, 2017 to be approximately USD O thousand (Z016; USD O thaugsnd),

19, Current and non-current financial liabilities

(USD thousands) 2017 2016
D B P B o ¥y W R e T ey o o P A e P o 329689 320,250
Ll TR O U ! 0 (27009
O T I e s ki e e b b B i o e e s #,533 38,795
Fhramte fe g Cm i B o it s bt cabb i vt r s nns bos b b ee et s 11,519 o 574

345,841 341,618
e B RO | e i e i e oo o i b S b b SR TN 345 11402
Dt wWiEhIn 1=2 Y BTS toiiiieinriimvrarsivetssrossnsbinsds s soas 2 803 28,217
D wikbum =3 NVBAFS ,ouivmnrmenrnsirinigpisis sy L L S LRrY LY LA MN e LRy L LLE T LI LA 1,642 204,145
Chue selthire 3-8 WEAFS o i i vsientiemeis ek ek i i o e b m L1649 1,034
LT T T g R R T T 30,577 S5k
i g T e e Bt e LR L R P L A P 5 B4 5,645

345,841 341,618
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Rocogniton of short-borm and bang-torm
financial liabilities in the statement of financial position:

Mon-current fimanoal Rabilities — Loase commuibmeEnks e ieiisie rnass 971 8,031
Non-current financial Habiifles — Credit NSHELURIONS ....ov e coiimmesiiiian s emiens 4,589 28,529
Non-current financial Habilities — [ssued BOAAS oo e, T ke 4 329 6H9 293 241
Current Tinaneial HEIIEIES L .oy rrsms e srsmers s rsors s reayrmaresmsrmmssens 3,845 11,817

345841 341,618

2016

Fixed or Etfective Carrying Carrying

fleating Intarest rata amouni armount

Currency Expiry interest B local'000 UsD ooo
CRKK 024 Floating 0.95-6.80 i, 508 g, 863
[FKE 2016 Fhoating 0.01-0.15 11,911 1,689
[HEK 2036 Fhaating 0,80+ 1. 00 17.934 2,543
EUR 018 Floating 21 25 00g 26,029
EUR 2016 Flaating 1.16-5.34 BE,753 8,253
s 2019 Fixod 8.5 203,241 293,241
341 618

2017

Fixed or Effective Carrying Carrying

flaating Interest rate amaunt amount

Currancy Expiry interest ) lecal' 000 UsD'o0o
DK 2024 Floating f.05-7,39 67,546 10,881
QKK 2036 Flaating 0,80-1,00 17,009 2,740
DEE a7 Floating 0,01-0,15 11,130 1,793
DEK 2023 Flaating G La-6.491 4,413 il
ELR 2020 Flowting o 0%-1.87 17 27
LIS 2023 Flwixd 5.75 2,046,610 325,669

345,841
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18.1 Isvsved bonds and bank delit

Ii Movember 2017, Wellteo A7S eued bonds of a value of USD 34D milllon. The bonds have a fixed
interest of 5.5% and an effective rate of 9.75%. The bands are repayable in full in November 2022, The
fair value of issued bonds ab Déecermber 31 2017, is USD 343 miilion [December 31, 2016 USD 328
millipn}, The fair value is based on the OTC queted market price 101,00 USD per. note [Decémber 31,
2016 101,00 USD per nobe) (heeel 1),

18.2 Finance lease obllgations

Finance lease relates to a building with' & lease torm of 1.5 years and manufacturing cquipment with
feace perms of 3-5 years The group has options to purchase the building and eguiprment fora nomina
amount at the end of the lease agreements. The group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by
the lessors’ title to Lhe |eased assels

(LISD thousands) 2017 2016
Prosant value Present value
of Minimum Minimum  of minimum
Minimum lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payment
Maturity of finance lease
obilgationg
WHhin L year i iii 1,860 1,801 1,597 1,511
Between 1 and 5 YOBFS i 6,101 5,904 9,434 4,530
CIVBT B FBETS oo otes et 4,151 3,813 4. 721 #4220
folal 12,312 11,619 16,753 10,261
| w017 2016
Enterest from finance lease, expensad . ... {1,480} {504}

The fair value of the finance lepss habilifios s approximabtely equal ko ther carrying amount ab Decembar
31, 2017 and December 31, 2016&.

19,3 Maturity dates for financial fabilities

2016
Less than 1 Betweon 1 and Later than 5

{USD thousandsh year 5 years years Total
Finance [ease cormmitments 1,548 3,872 3,743 9. 163
Bank debt ..o 10,355 46,547 1,801 38,798
Iszued bonde...... e ] 293,241 4] £33, 241
Payables to affiligtes 133 o 8] 133
Trade pavablEs i 8,759 i | 0 8,759
Other payables ..o 29011 0 0 29,011

L 49,808 323,655 5,644 179,105
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All debt is mepsured & gmortized cost. The amaounts in the table above are exclusive ol Interest

Interest on issued bonds matures on an annual basis by USD 26 milhon usbil maturty on February 1,
2015,

2017
Less than 1 Between 1 and Later than 5

(USD thousands) yEear 5 ywars years Total
Finance |ease commilments 1,902 5,904 FE13 11,619
Bankedabto.ooo 1,843 1] 1,980 4,533

Tsauied Bends ..o o 329,550 o 329, 689
Payabies to affill atex 1] o o 0
Trode payabdes (.o 13,929 a 0 12,929
Deher payabkes ... T 22 387 ] 0__ L3387
TORRD oo il iy 39,081 336,182 5.803 81,057
Al deby s meesured &5 amortized coat, The amoonts in the table above are cxclusive of intarest
Interést on isswed bonds matures on an annual basis by USD 26 million until maturity an February 1,
2019,
18.4 Net interest-hearing dabt

1 January MNon-cagh 31 December

TUSE thausands) 2017 Cash-lows changos 2017
Finance lease commltments a.578 (2.577) 4,617 | 1,619
BB OB v e 26,850 {28,659) 3,562 1,783
lsswed bonds .o 293,241 35, 058 {2,650) 329,689
Fayables bo affiliales a 0 i &
Trade payables ..o.ovvoiviinrrees L] a ] F]
Cther payables 2;543 (141 338 2. 740
L[ 711 | R 332,253 F.raE 5 B6T Jan g341
20. Other payables

[LUSD thoussnds) 2017 2016
Wanes and salaries, personal Boame texes, social security costs, etc. payable 3,054 2,993
Ho ke Py OB O e it ettt e b b bt r e d b e b nmi e e | nen 5,613 5,74]
T O TR Gl bimi b shh s L ha e ot bontd s e b e 511 10,055
Other costs payable. e e e e e e . 3 1 11,004 9.8962

Tuf.t uth“ mahlukl' FERRERALERAE R LR AL B LR R PP FER I FEe R R bR r pa T rdnd PR e R Izrj'.ﬂ 13:3“1
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Other

21, Fees to auditor appointed at the Ahnual General Meeting

(USD thousands) 2017 2016 2015
e N o i o i e s e 269 260 540
Statutory audil BBrvICES . e s s s e 269 260 540
Mon-awdit services:

Agurants oplslons ..., i Lk B e L K SR R e bR 3 [ 23
T B T S BT ot B B F R £ AR - R B 183 59 268
OHRBT L aigineas o DTS AR R e = 1B 55 208
NOD-BUTIE SBIVICES iiiaeuionibiniinnsissssinssiaay ssss s brsrsbaras s piiaass nes pa ag7 118 499
Total foes to BUAROME ..o s sssissns st ssr s e s asmn s pa e b 766 378 1,039

For 2016 and 2017, PricewaterhouseCoopers Statsautorisarel Reovisiohspartnerseiskab was the elected
audito. For 2015 the slected auditor was Deloitte Statsautoriseret Revisionsparinerselsinm,

22. Asseils charged and contingent liabilities

In 2017, the Group has Issued bank guarantees to third parties In the amount of US0 3,622 thousand. In
2016, guarantess o third parties were USD 6,214 thousand

IH Holding, Allernd, ApS and ta Damsh subsidianes are part of a Danish joint taxation, JH Holding,
Aliersd, ApG is the management company., As from the financlal year 2013, the companies in the group
hawe partiy a joint and sevveral atality and partly a secondary Hability with respect to Income faxies ete,
for the jolntly faxed companies.: As from July 1, 2012, It 5l80 had partly a joint and several liabiiity and
partly a secondary lability with respect bo any obligations to withhold tex an interest, ravallies and divi-
dends for these companies, However, in both cases, the secondary liabliity i capped at an amount ‘egual
to the share of the capital of the company directiy or indirectly owned by the ultimate parent company

The Bond debt s guarantecd by Welltee Intermations] ApS, Welltee Holding ApS, Wellkeo Canada Inc.,
Welltec Atrica ApS, Welltec (UKY Lid, Wellter Tnc, and Welltec Oilfield Services (Morway} A5 and is
sacuied, subject to certain exceptions and permitied lemk, By all 6f the Esued shsres of Welltec A/S and
cach of the guarantors [other than Welllec International ApS, Welltec Chlfi ald Services (Morway] AS and
Wielltes (LR Lrd. ).

The Group 1% Involved in legal procecdings snd disputes in & number of countries against husinesses aid
individuals, Il is the opinion of Management that the outcome of these procesdings will ot hove a
miaterial impact on the group’s financial position, reswlts of operations or cash flows.

22, Operating lease commitments

LUSE thowsends) 2017 2016 2015
Rental ang Ieasing cblioations

T T O T Y 4 BH9g 4. 39] 5,058
B 2 0 BB e et i e s v rwmrrma kb 130 UL b e A ek B,952 8,704 12,257
R I B s b e B S ey sm R v E e r p e e e racn b e e =] P 11 11,492

Total rental and leasing obligations .o i i 17,714 1B.G33 28,807
Rental and leasing expensos for the YEar ... 8,022 7,264 9,995

The group has éntered mio operational leasing agreements regarding house rental, affice Turnilure and
compaiy cars for the pennd 20108-2026. Hental shligations are runnlsg fram 3 to 36 months.
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24. Financial instruments

24.1 General capital strocture

The group s financed partly through equity and partly threugh long-term debt. Managemen! aszesses an
a regular basis whether the group's capital structure i= in accordance with the group's and sharemolders’
interests, The overall objective s to ensure & capital structure that supports long-term growth-and siso
maximizes returme to the shareholders of the group by optimizing the debt to equity ratio. The aroup's
averall chjective remaing the same

4.2 Marker risk

Dipk b0 the group’s foreign activities and cradit facilities in forelgn currencies, ite profit/loss, cash flows
and equity are affected by changes In exchange rates ond interest rates for a number of Currendies,

B significant part of this change In exchange rates has been eliminated by changing functional currency
for the Danish companies to US dollars from 2012,

24.2.1 Forelgh currency risk management

The reporting currency of the aroup is US doeltars. The functional cummency of the most stanificant Danish
campanies is considered 1o b2 US dollars, and the rest of the group™s subsidiaries bave the functional
currency of the country in which the subsidiary s domiciled, & proportion of the group’s revenues, sx-
penses and other llaklities are denominated In currencies other than WS dollars, in paricutar Danish kro-
ner, Morwegian kroner and British pounds, Exchange rale exposures are managad within spproved palicy
parametirs.

The carryirig amounts of the group's foreign currency denominated mongtary assets and monetary liabli-
thes at the end of the reporting period are a5 follows stated in the material currenciés affecting the group:

Assats Liabilities
(USE thousands) 2017 2016 2017 2016
DEEK 207,132 354,324 187,816 210,051
Gop 15,263 14,759 9671 8,940
MO 3,696 G,454 455 3,749

24.2.2 Farelgh currency sensftivity analysis

The following table details the group™s sensstivity Lo o 10% increase and decrease in DEK, GBP and MOK
against the relevant foreign cuirencies, The percentage used is the sensitivity rate-and is representing
Management's assessment of Lhe reasonably possible change In farckgn exchange rates. The sensitivity
analyzis inciudes only outstanding foreign currency dencminated monetary items and adjusts thelr trans-
lation. at the period and for 3 changg in forglgn currpncy rales. Tho sonsilivity snalysis includes external
toars as well as loans to forgign operations within the group wheee the denomination of the loan i in &
currency abther than the curmency of the lender or Ehe borrower, & positive number below indicates an
increase in profit and equity where the curmency strennthens 10% against the refevant currency, Far a

1 0% weakening of the currency against the relevant currency, there would be & comparable impact on
the profit #nd other equity, dnd the batancos below would be negative

Currancy Currancy Curre
DK impact GEP Impact MK Impact
(UsD thousands] 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Profitf{leas) .. 1,933 =1 iz 41 240

EQUItY ..o v 0 {327) (274 623

)
=)
il
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24.2.3 Falr value hierarchy of asseis that are measured al falr value In the statement of

financial posftion
2016
Mz
Quoted prices Orhsarvabie observalile
{UED thousands) levell  input lewel 2 (Apl lewel 3 Total
SRR CLEFTEI B, oy i s rnrw n o om0 B B e e 1 ¥ ] a
Biological @ss8ls ., ... L] 4] 23 879 £3.B73
Total assats measured st fair valoe ... i) (1] 23 87 23,879
2017
Man-
Quoted prices Dbsorvable obsarvable
(L=D0 thousands) fmvel 1 inpirt leved 2 Input el 3 Total
L R o s e e ] o 4 i i
Blologionl BEssbE . . i i s 1] 0 24,566 74566
Total assets mensured at fair value ... 0 4] 24 566 lﬂlﬁﬁﬁ-

Acssets measernd at fair value are dassified wsing the followmng far value hierarchy:

Listed prices in active markets of identical assets or lizbilities (level 1),

Listed prices in active markets of similar assels or isbilities, or other valuation methods - whore all mater|-
&l Input are based o observable market data (level 2). The valuation of derivative financial instruments

in 2017 k5 based on Mark to Market (MM} valves from finencial instiiubions {level 25,

Valuation methods under which any materal inpot is not based on obsenvable markeat data [level 33,

The valuastion of breeding horses Included under blolngical ésgets s besed on purchase indications
recEfeed F such pre available, 1T purchase |ndicetions are not present, the uslustion |= based on
Management’s best estimabes consldedng results h competition, age, development and genedc

COMpoSeon,

Thare have been no transfers between levels 1, 2and 3 In 2017 oF Ih 2016,

24, 2.4 Interest rate risk management

Fram the heginning &f 2012 the group’s interest rate risk mainly relaies 1o the group's interest
bearing debt to bondholders. The interest is flwed at an effactive rate of B.5%. In Noavember
2017 the interest bearing debt was refinanced with 8 new bond 1oan. The intéerest i figed at an
effecitive rate al-9, 75%.

A5 Ehe dnterest robe 5 fxed the grovp does mot apply hadge accounting to 1t denvative
financial instruments. Thus any changes v falr valie are recognized directly in statement of
comprehensive income a5 financal income gr fingeoal expenses

24, 2.5 Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The group's Interest-bearing debt for 2017 and untll the refinancing In November 2017 =
primanily fided to 8.5% due {0 the bond loan, wever the EIB loan has a variablo inberest of
230 + & months EURIBDA. Both loars wore rofinarced by end of 2017 and the new bodid loan
i= fized to am interest rate of 9.5%,

A 250 basls point increase or decrease mpresents Management's sesassment of the reaconsbly
pocsible change in intefest rates.
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If Interest rates had been 250 batis points higherfiower and all other variables were: held
canstant, the group's:

Proft for the yesr and equity as of December 31, 2017 would be affected with USD 875
thousand (2016 675 thousand).

24.3 Liguidity risk managpenrent

It is the group’s policy that capital raising and distribution of cash are managed centrally by the group’s
Finamce Department Lo the extent T is deemed appropriate, The group mandges lguldity risk by
malntaining adequele reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrawing facilities, by continuously
micnitoring forecast and-actual cash finws,

The group & sdjusting centrally the cash outfiow in Investments in intangtbie assets and propery, plant
and equipment in Denmark,

Pleases see note 19,3 Mafurly dates for fnancial labiites.

24.4 Categories af financial instrumenits

2017 2016
{50 thawsands)
Trade recelvable T R — yHou ek e 4 bR X 53,217 44,300
CHhor roceiv@hlEs . e e e s S e — ’ B.526 10,451
Prepayments ... TR pevet R U R AN Gt v R R AT P AN ) L35l 3,141
Cash and cash BquIvEREITES. L. iy e et e - ey e 35,353 5 638
Recaivables and 08NS .o o 106,902 116,528
BORUMEIES wisssasbnias ntsssirnssins R b b r s bbbk b A B s 0 1
Financial assets al falr value thiough profit of 1888.....cocrvrearrrerrsrsmsares 0 1]
Financo lease fommibiments e T T 11,6149 8,574
TR e O e e it i e e e o o i b g 4 g ko o e L e 329,649 £93,741
Dither non-curment Habilithes .00 R TPy T PR R 81 e Sarn e o ey T L 0 &
Current ta NaBUEES . o i e et bttt ot et et e s . 12,832 ¥
Trade PAYAIEE i rrs e s e rr e g p e ra e Ry s 2. 068 8,753
e P Al . e b A e b S R 22.1en 29011

Financial lizbllities measured ol amortiZed COBE .. meibb i e 378,196 240,590
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25. Related parties

JH Holding, Allerpd, ApS' relaled parties

The ultimate principal shareholder of the group s Jergen Hallundbazk whe has the control,

1

Subsidlaries of IH Hokding, Allerad, ApS - sep note @ in the financial statements of the parent com:
pany.

¢ Industries Helding B, Hoogoorddreef 15, 1101 BA, Amsterdam, Holland {owns more than 5% of
Exor NV, Hoogoorddree! 15, 1101 BA, Amsterdam, The Netherands [owns more than 5% of
Companies [n which the principal shareholder exercises control, |e. Haregabgaard ApS and Tinker-

bell ApS, Haregabswe] 15, Esbanderup Skovhuogn, 3730 Grasped,

Members of the parent campany’s Executive Management and Board of Directors a5 well bs close

F

Welltec Internatinnal ApS).
&,

Welltec Intermabional ApS).
4,
5

relatives of thess members,
G

Subsidiaries of Welltee Tntematicngl ApS - see note 14, Investments in subsidiaries |n U cansall
dated financial statements of Welltec Intemational Aps

Balances and tranasckions between (ho company and (ts subsidiares, which are related parties of the
company, have been eliminated on consélidation in afgordancs with the afcounting policles and are nok
disciosed in Ehis note, Bul in nete 15 to the finencisl statements of the parent company, Detalls of trans:
actions between the group and other related partics are disclosed below,

Z5.1 Relgied poriies transactions

DHiring tee year, group entities entersd intoe the fallovoindg transaclions with refated parties thal are ol
members af the aroup;

(USE: thousands)

2016
Key Board of
Sharsholders management Directors Associates
Share buybadk ] 783 n i}
Purchace of cervices L F) L] {1 1]
Sale of services [217) L | )|
Legal services o i¢] 17 4
Total (180} 793 i7 1]
2017
Ky Board of
Shareholders management Directors: Assoclates
Sales of thares 26,544 0 Q W
Consultant serylces 7o 4] 0 1]
Purchase of serrices 45 i o
Lale of servicaes {2201 ] o
Crebt as=umption 14742 0 Q 1]
Total 27,511 1] 4] 4]




JH HOLDING, ALLERDD, APS ANMNUAL REPDRT 2017 63

In 2016 Legal services from Board of Cirectors relétes to & fermir member of the Board.

Im 2017 Exor WAL and 7 Industries Hoiding B.Y, purchased own shares from Welltec International for
USD 26.5%44 thoveand and alsn funded the capital increase of U500 11,842 thowsand.

The fallawing balances were outstandimg af the end of the reporting pericd:

Amounts owed by related Amounts owed to related

partios parties
2017 2016 2017 2016
Shareholders and Management . ... 2,194 1,635 1] [t}
Tobil woprins PSEEPRMUR 2,194 1,629 o o

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are relsted partes of the
Company, have beén eliminsled in consolidetion In accordance with the sccounting polleies and aré nok
disclosed in this moke, but in pote 15. Related parties to the financial statements of the parent company.
Details of transactinns between the group and athér relsbed parties are disclaced below,

26, Evenis after the balance sheet date

From 20 March 2018 the Parent Company no-longer contrals Welltec Intermational Af%S
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PARENT COMPANY

PAREMNT STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENCED DECEMBER 31, 2017, 2016 AND 2015

{USD thousands) Note 2017 2016 2015
Admiristrative €6858 3 [67) (131} (185)
Operating 1088 (EBITY ...cciin s (67) {131) {185)

Profit from sales of eguity holdingsfinvestmenks : in

subsidiaries 20,512 o f
|3 T T PN LIR NP e PR s Y i 251 1,200 iq,645
Financlnl eXpensss ..o e e 5 {71) {1.857) (4,921)
Profit/ (loss) before baX . ..coomimiin it e 20,625 (g28) (465}
) Lol (3o o e e PR I P S e, & 78 31 G4
Profit/ (loss) Tor the Year ..o 20,702 (797} {411}

Total comprehansive income .o . 20,702 {raz) [411)
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PARENT STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT RECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

(UED thousands) Note 2017 2016

Mon-current assets

Financlal assets

Dreforred taxasset . ; 26 23
Trviestmgnts in subgidieries FRRALH R4 i e e e e e e T g B9 611 78,905
Toba] FNBICIE] BEBELE . civiscerrrirrsirrssrissrr prsressimnsi rrsi brribr s brrs s e s 89,637 7B, 928
Totnl ron-Curfant BEEERE s iia s ios L oe s s b bR b B9,637 78,938

Current assets

Recelvables

T R T B e ) L e R S i3 il
R =ta L o T oL L= T L SR 3 49
Recoivables from subsidiares amd afiliabos e 15 4,181 1
Fecslvables from Shareholders and Mansgement - 1030 ., is 1,851 1,622
Recoivablas from Shamholders and Management - abher i L 343 a
T LT i i
Total recelvables ... i FHa i ERTESTERY 6,391 1,680
2T R p | 4L e B Py PR e AR NSO - 0 o
Cash and cash equivalemnts .o e A o 5,648 116
Total curmrent BESeES . o i e ¥ i 12,039 1,B06

Tml ."Hi ERd FERAFERFERREd b Fr PR v A bR TR e ey rRaw lulrﬁ?i El-?a‘
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PARENT STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT DECEMBER 31, 2087 AND 2016

[USD thausands) HNote
Equity

Chare capital ... ..., g Y RN EE AT LR, SERRLEAES Y 15
Currency tTansiBbion MESErVE, ..o oamit:
LT H LT JE T T v e S O S

Current Hahilities

Credit institutions.. oo i i, e e e e 11
Current tau ligbHiies, Jolnt tamatiom. .. o bmssnns s amsaenss
Trade payables . covemresicsiinmas e L e i G e T bR 11
Payables to subsidiaries and affilkabes i i e
AT BRI . e e e e e 11

TORRE CLITPRIIR U BB UINEIR: .. o0 s i s st e 4 i

Total llakilities ..... . - e B

Total equity and HabIIEES .. oo ssbat s st sre s s s nmms

2017 2016

88 BB
(6,361) (17,214)
107 874 87,172
101,581 70,046
0 9,280

0 0

a5 o

0 1,302

0 106

a5 10,688

95 10,688
101,676 80,734
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PAREMNT STATEMENT DF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENGED DECEMBER 31, 2017, 2016 AND 2015

Currency
Share transiation Ratained

copital resorie parnings Total
{USD thousands)
Equity at December 31, 2015 ...ocoveeinis 8o {14,839) B7.369 73,118
Profit fless for bthe year oo ) £l 1] {79E) {756
LUnrealized edchange rate ad). related 1o
DRETUNG BOUTEY © cvevrmrarmssrmsarsassssasrpanapass Q (2, 274) 2] {2 34
Total comprehensive Income for the
e L S (2,274) (796) (3,070}
'Equit? B nEI’.‘El'Hh-El' 31' 2’“16 ,,,,,,,,,,,,, M BE { 1?* 11‘} 31' 1?2 ?urM?
Profit/loss for the year . errioinn ) ] 1] 20,702 20,702
Unrealized pxchamge rate adi. related o
Lo Too .y 1] =1 (1] o e e L] 10,833 ] 10,833
Totasl comprehensive income for the
1| | LS et S s R et B B S e 4] 10,833 20,702 31,535

Egquity at December 31, 2007 ... HE (E,381) 107,874 101,581
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PARENT STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016, 2015 AND 2014

[USE in thousands)

OEErating 1028 TEBIT Y wsisimsssssisisispitisisrnrammmnns s nai brpsas
Mon-cash adjustmenis,, ... .. e aes e
Changes (1 working CBEIEAL ..o bt ot vaii diis e
Income takes received oo i i . )
Other payables, long term ... T U e NFLTY [T
Cagh Nows from operating BEUVILES. ..o

Proceeds from salefinvestment in securilles
Financial INDOME TROBIVBL o o b s it tea i gttt e i v

Cash flows from investing activities ...

Financial EXpen®es DAL oo inibie i s iressnns
Cther firancial ERPEnSEs. .o s hes s s ies
IrvestmEnt In CHPIB .. rromsieirmisnnmmrnmrans bn i ssu o srasansnnsne
Precoods frem long termodebit i imiismnissnisn
Repayment of long termadelt . o e e
Procoeds from salefinvestmrent i securibies oo e ey
Hepayment of bank debt ..., - IRt

Cash flows from financing activities . ...............oo0
Inerease fdecrease In eash and cash eqguivalents,., . .
E!Ehir‘llﬂ! rate adjustment ab 01,07 .o
Cash and cash eqittvabents at G100 i )

Cash and cash equivalents at 31.1% . . . ._......... -

Note 2017 2016 2015
() (131) (184}

7 0 @ (120)
B (4,751}  (3,129)  (1,624)
8 7 (1<)

o o a

{4,676) (3,253} ({1,945)
10,416 392 2,112

250 1,200 4,694

19,666 1,592 6,806

(7o) {1,897] {529}

[123) 0 {44, 1113

0 i {268)

0 5,280 0

0 {5,895} o

o v} 2,113

(9,280} b o
{9.473) 1,488 _ (4 908)
5,517 (563) (47)

116 300 [228)

16 ire 654

5,649 116 379
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MNOTES TO PARENT ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting policies

Baslg of sccounting

The annual repont for 2017 of the parent company, TH Helding, Allerad, ApS, = presented in accardance
with Internationsl Financial Reporting Standarde ['TFRS') as adapted by the EU and further requirements
in the Danish Financial Statements Act. Mease see the Danish Executive Order on IFRS adoption issued in
atcordance with the Danish Financlal Statements Aot

The annual repart is presentea in thousands of US dollars (USE), The functional currency of the parent
company (= Danish kroner [DKK),

The accounting policles are unchanged compared to 2016,

Difforencaes comparad to the group's accounting policles

The Parent company's accounting policles for recognition and measurement are in acoordance with the
group's policles with the exceplions stated below:

Investments In subsidiaries

Investrmients in subsidiaries are measured ak cost in the parent company’s financial statements. Where
the recoverable ameunt of the investments is lower than cost, the investments are wirtten down to this
lower value. Dividend from invesiments in subsidianes is recognized i the statement ol comprehensive:
imcoma in the year it s declared.

2. Use of critical accounting estimates and judgments

The determination of carrying values and proparation of the annual report bulld upon estimates made by
Managemént. of the hkely offect of future events on thie value of investments and receivabbos inffeam
subsidiarles. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

The estimates used bulld upon assumptions which, in the opinion of Management, are valid albelt inhas-
enkly uncertain and unpredictahle. A assessmont s made of the possibifity of recovering the carrying
walue of Intangible and tangible essets. The assessment af recoverable ambunis & based an estimatad
roturns generated by those assets in Ehe cash-gonerating unit,

Statement of comprehensive income

3. Staff costs

There have been noemployees in the perent company For the fnancial yoars 2014-2017, Please soe note
4 in the consolidated finoncial statements for information on remuneration bo Management.
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&, Financial income

(LS thoussnds] 2017 2016 2015
Interest income. ., - R B b P R B T 0 143 L4
Interest income Fn:m- ﬁub\sll:llarleﬁ an-ﬂ aﬂ'r]rabu- .............................. 251 ¥] 3
Interest incoma from financial assets that are not measured at
fair value through profil or 1088 sisimrisismiismmissrrbersrasrremee 51 142 527
e T T e i e e e e bl e A (& 0 o
Falr value adiustment of financlal INSIruments ... 0 i 4,118
2451 142 4,645
5. Financial expenses
(LSD thousands) 2017 2016 2015
INEErest EXPEASES. ... i iiiinperessiainns AYTRITT et g {713 (658) [B53)
Intorest expenses to subsidiaries and affiliates i (oY {123} {5H)
(Hher financial expenses et SLebbiEEN {0} {1}
Interest expensos from financial liabilities that are not
measured at falr value throwgh profit ar 1088 s (1) [7B1) [912)
e P R I DO L s ettt 0 bt b b e e () (1,1186) {18}
Fair value adjustment of Hnamciel INSTIUMERTE . ceresrerors sreros s ] 0 {3,591
(71) _(1,897) _(4,921)

The net profit impact of financial instruments measured at fair valuge throwgh profit o loss amiounted (o a8
net gain of USD O thousand at December 31, 2007 [net gain of USD [ thousand in. 2016 and net gain of

USD 127 thousand in 2015}

The nel exchange rate Ioss at December 31, 2017 was USD S0 thousand (a net exchange rate loss of
WS 1,116 thousand in 2016 and a net exchange rate loss of USD 18 thousand in 2016].

B, Income faxes

LUSEH in thousands | 2017 2016 2015
R N e i e i b i b A b b b d b THrA VR b P L FERI 1 FRRASFE 02 4P EE 1] (21} (503
Adjustment in curpnra'rmr'- BB PrEVIOLEE YOI E iiant iie maans sreaarsnaarsanais {78} 15 (4]
Current tax incl. adj. in corporation tax provious YRarE ... (78) (B8]} (54)
CRRNQE 0 DEIErTE TBX .o iierebiiii i B R BB b i R b B B BB 0 (241 0
TCOMIE LBNEE oo vrism it iersrrmrsrsssssesiossrrasrrespie st shersbin bt rnressrmserrrasss 0 {30) (54}
A breakdown of tax:
5 e [T T T2 T 2 e e B R A LV 4 ¥ P e e 20,625 {B28) [455)
20,625 (B28) {465
Reconcliation of tax rale (%)
Cranish corporation box rale ., T FRE 4 EE TRERS R WF—=TERR Jd T R34+ BAFERT 23 a2 231.5
Mor-laxable Income and non-deductibin eXpenses . o e " (22) (i@} (13}
Oithor, including adjustment b0 PFEWIEHS YORES e g . ] i i
] 4 i2
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MNa ineome Lax has been eoognized In other compretensive income (loss] or directly ineguity n 2005,

2056 and 2017,
Statement of cash flows

7. 'Non-cash adjustments

[USEH Lhousands) 2017 2016 2015
Wrrealized gains/losses on finencial instruments 0 0 (1147
Currehicy adjustments, other { ] =}
Special Ilems i 1] 4]
o 0 {3120}
B. Changes in working capital
(USD thoysands) 2017 2016 2015
Change In receivables and prepayments . . (1] (317 (412)
Chango in recervabies froem subsidianes and affikates (net) . (4, /63 {1} {250)
Change | IPEE PRYEMHEE ... o sy i sanvann v s Q% (55} {58)
Change |h ather payables ... oo {106) (970} 35
Change in pavebles Lo rélaled parties 1 1,302) (1,787} (B9
(4, 751) (3,130) (1,624)
Statement of financial position
9. Investments in subsidiaries
(LISE thousands) 2017 2016
Ao iaisTtion il DL L L e brasinmmnhs b sna g madn s g i o 4 4k e i 78,905 B1,479
AOUIONE . e i i
Decreases. . ... .. e T e e a0 bl LR e b e e L -35 0
Exchange rate sdiustments. . ...ocoene - — N ok 10,741 (2,574
Acqulsition oosl 31.17 ... crconrcnnermerr s e T . 89,611 78,905
Shares in Wellteo International ApS & partly pledged a5 securlty for Bank &nd investor lean
The parent company has an investment in the following subsidiaries:
istered b i
Mame e Principal actwity rar/ i Share
country cufrency units
Welltec International Aps Denmark Holding Company 2007 /DKK 4,894,994 52,46%
Tinkarball ApS Denmark Sales Compariy 2012/DKK 80,000 10
Haregabgaard ApS Denmark Sales Company 2008/DKEK S00,100 100
Wallte A== Denmark Manufacture 1989/DKE 292,005,743 10
Welltec Holding ApS=esass Denmark Hodding Company 2005/DKHK 254,865,743 1000
Pt Welltec Qiffield Services Indonesia®™ Indomesda Sales Company 200550 500,000 = L
Wellter Qlifield Services Argentina 54 Argentinag Sales Compary  2015fARS 50,000 0%
FrT
wWillter Oilfield Services {Malaysia) Sdn.
Bhd== Phaiaysan Sales Company 2005/ MY R 350,000 A%
Wellter (UK) Ltd. == Scotland - LK Sales Company 2002/ GEP 1 10¥



Weliter Canada Ine, =

wedlter Inc. =*

RS 200F aps*=

welltec Qilfield Services Pty. Lbd. ="
Willter Letingmerics Ap5+*

‘Walltec Africa ApS**

Wallbee Venezuela, C4, =

‘Welltac do Bras# Lida, »==

Walltec Angola Lok, =%

Welltec Oifell Services (Migeria)

I-td. LR

Weellbe: Dflfiekd Services Gabon Sarl
EREd

Wiellbac Qilfield Services (Norway )=
Welltec Dilfield Services {Doha}
LG

Wedltec Qilfield Services {RUS) LLC.==
Walitec Dilfield Services (Azerbaijan)
Lkl ==

Waittec Dilfield Services Mexioo 5 8.
Weditez Dilfield Services {Indea) Private
Limited =*

Wellte: Dilfield Services (Saudi Arabia)
Lig=*

Wellter Dilfield Services {Proprietary)
{South

Africa) Limited====

Welltec Qiifietd Services (Kazakhstan)
LLp=®

Wallter Cuifiedd Services (Uganda)
Lirndted*=

Waelltec Cutfield Services (Ghana)
Lirniteds»s=

Welltec Cutfeeld sarvices {Ukraina}
LLC*=

Wellbes Gilfield Services (Trindad &
Tebagao) Lim- ited®

Wedlber Switzeriand Holding®**®*®
Wellkec Oiifield Services {Continental
Eurcpe)*™

* jipld fry Wiedlter Enc
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Canada
54
Denmark
Australia
Denmark
Denmark
Venezueis
Brasil

Migeria

Gabkon

Morway
Qatar
Audsis
Azerbaifan

Mexico

india

Saudi Arsbis

South Africa

Kazakhstan

Uganda

Ghana

Ukraine

Trinadad &
Tobago
Switrerland

Danmark

Sales Company
Sades Company
Sales Cofmpaty
Sakes Company
Sabes Companmy
Sales Company

Sales Company
Sales Company
Sales Company

Sales Company

Sales Company

Sales Company
Sales Company

Sales Company
Sales Company

Sales Company

Sales Company

Sples Company

Sales Campany

Sales Compamy

Sabes Campany

Sabes Company

Sabes Company

Sales Company

Holding Comgany

Salkes Company

*THeld by Welllet 4SS * =% (Baif by Waslller Lalinamentis ApS

wweeeneld by Wellleo Holding aps, ***** *Heid by Weltso Inlemational ApS

2001/CAD
2000/ USD
2001 /DKEK
20057800
2005/DKK
2005/DKK
2005/ VEF
2006/BRL
2006, LIST

2006NGN

2015/CFA

2015/NOK
2015/QAR

2007 /AU
2007,/UsD

2007 /MEN

2008/INR
2008/5AR

2010/ZAR

2011/KZT

201 EHUSD

2013 GHC

2013 UAH

2016/TTD
2016/CHF

201 4/DKK

6,000,001
100,000
125,000

10

475,000
125,000

1,000
423,790

5000
25,000,000
1,500,008

3,000,000
1,000

1006, O
5,008

50,000

100,000

500.000

1,000

151,200

10,000

40, B1B

1,000

1
100,000

S0, D

73

100%,
1005
100
1080
100
10050
100%:

45%,

0%

1005

100%
49%,

100

100

1000

10054

100%

100%

49%

100%

100%
100%,

100%

sanaiimld by Wellteo Afreca ApS

Even through Welllec ASS only holds 2:49% and 30% ownership interest in four subsidiaries, Welltec A5

CHALrG

w L Four suebsidiarees through holdings of mors Than al of the wdting [k
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10. Share capital
See note 17 Share capital in the consalidated financial statomonts.

The parent company, JH Holding, Allerad, ApS, holds no own Shares and no own wamrants.

11. Current and non-current financial liabilities

11.1 Maturity dates for fnanclal Nabilitles

2016

Less than 1 Between 1 and Later than S
[U'ED Eheusands) YEar 5 years YRars Total
Payables to subsidiares a 8] ] 0
Bank dBBE i i 5 2B0 ¥ ] 9 280
Trade payables.. ..o Ll 0 1 ]
Other pavables,,. . oeves 106 (i} o) 106
B 1 R e TG LY o L R 9,386 1] 1] 8,386
All habilities shown in the tablo above are measured al amortized cost, The amounts are cxclusive of
interest.
2017

Less than 1 Betwesan 1 and Later than 5
[LISD thousands) YEAT 5 years VERrS Total
Fayables to subsidianies ., 4! o 0 B
Bank debl and Investor loan i} a (i 0
Trade payvabes. .. ..o, g5 L 0 ag
Qihor payables, . ..o (] a (W] (1]
Total ... a5 0 1] 95

Al laldliies shosen in the table above are measured at amortized coat. The amounts are exclusive of
nteresy,
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Other

12. Fees to auditor appointed at the Annual General Meeting

(USD in thaousands) 1017 2016 2015
Statutory Audib SErvIceE. Lo e o e e 20 19 48
Statutory SUdIE BerVICEE. i i senbascsin saes b sk has s e s bR s R RS 20 19 2B
Mon-audit services;

Assurance gpinlons ..., i 0 i}
T AR BTN L ix i bt bk b b 8 b s e e R {0 0 51
Other 315 18 B7?
Mon=-audll Services. oo P S EUSSMSET SUCTE T P ——— 37.5 i8 136
L LT T L S ———— 57,5 ar 166

For 2016 and 2017, PricewaterhouseCoopers Statsautoriserct Revisionspartnerselskab was the elected
auditor, For 2014 and 2015 the elected suditer was Deloltbe Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab,

13. Assels charged and contingent liabilities
Ses nofte 9 and 22 Assefs charged and cantingent fabiiites In the consolidated financial statements
14, Financial instruments

For group ocveirview, please see note 24 FAnasclal instruments in the consolidated Mnanclal slatements.

Currgncy rishs

The parent company is exposed to Hmited currency risks as the majority of transactions 8nd balances are
in 115 functional currancy.
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15. Related parties

Lpe note 35 Redated parfies in the consaldated financial statomonts,

15.1 Related parties transactlons

Chiarimg T year, the company entered ints bhiz following transactions with related parties:

2017
Kay Board of

[ LIS thousands) Afliliales® management Directors® Associates
Rividend paid to shareholders i L+ ] il
Raw materials and finishod goods i} i} il i
Purchaze of actlvities | o i i
Share buyback o §] i ]
Lagal services { &) 1] )
Tolal 0 (4] o (1]

* The prejviow Chalmman of the Boord of Directors of Welltec Intematiensl 8pS

Thas fedllowing Batances wiere outstanding at the end of the reporting penod:

Amounts owed by refated Amounts owed to related

parties parties
2017 2016 2017 2016
Bubsiklaries and affiliates . oo 4,181 1 i} {1,302
Charehoiders and Management ... ...ocvieeniens 2,194 1,629 o n
ORI it O B e M VB O AR 6,375 1,630 [i] {1,302)

Sharenalders loan acoumulates interest with 8% p.s. Other receivables from- shareholders accumulates
inberesl with 10.05%% p.a. Both are pavable upen reguest. The net recelvables = nol considered to be

irmpalned

16, Ewvepts after the balance sheet date

See note 26 Evenis after the balance sheel date in the conselidated financial stastements



BRANCHES
The Grvgp hotds the following branches:

Mame
Welltec Af5 (Azerbabjan Branch)®
Welltes 805 Indie Project Dffice®

Welltec Africa ApS E.G. =%

Wellte &S5 - Abu Bhabi®

Wellter Latin America ApS Sucursal Columblang?
Wellter /% [Gabon Branch)*

Wellte: Africa ApS Congo=*2

Welltec Latinamerica ApS (Ecuador Branch)*
Welltec Africa ApS (Ivory Coast Branch) =+

L Held by Wefitec A/S
L Held by Wekte: Latinamerica &pS
#e= Held by Welliec Africh ApS5

JH HOLDING, ALLERQD, APS ANNUAL REPORT 2007 77

Registred Principal Year,
affice activity CUITERCY
fzerbayzan Cales Branch ZO0RAEN
India Lales Branch 2008/ TNR
Equatorial
Galnes Sales Branch SO0 KAF
LAE Sales Branch f011/AED
Columbea Sales Branch 2011/C0p
Eaborn Sales Branch 201 2/CFA
Corgo Sales Branch F0135CFR
Ecuador Sales Branch 20 1-5I,n'|.ISD
Iviory Coast Sales Branch 2015 MOF




